
PAGE
AGENDA

1 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY COMMISSION ‐ CITY OF WILDWOOD 
Mayor/Commissioner – Ed Wolf – Seat 1     

Mayor Pro‐Tem/Commissioner – Pamala Harrison‐Bivins – Seat 2  
Robby Strickland – Seat 3 

Don C. Clark –Seat 4  
Julian Green – Seat 5 

Bill Ed Cannon – City Manager 
 

AGENDA  

REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 24, 2014 - 7:00 PM 
City Hall Commission Chamber 

100 N Main Street 
 

Persons with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City 
Clerk’s Department, ADA Coordinator, at 352‐330‐1330, Ext. 102, forty‐eight (48) hours in advance of the 
meeting. 
F.S.S. 286.0105A ‐ If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Commission with respect to 
any matter considered at this meeting, they will need a record of the proceedings, and that for such purpose 
they may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. The City of Wildwood DOES NOT provide this 
verbatim record. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER: 
 INVOCATION 
 FLAG SALUTE 
 PLEASE TURN OFF ALL CELL PHONES AND PAGERS 

 
2. CONSENT AGENDA/INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 (A consent agenda may be presented by the Mayor at the beginning of a meeting. Items may be removed from the consent agenda 

on the request of any one Commissioner. Items not removed may be adopted by general consent without debate. Removed items 
may be either taken up immediately after the consent agenda or placed later on the agenda at the discretion of the Commission.) 

 
a. Minutes: Special Called Meeting 12-26-13  
 
b. Bills for Approval  
 
c. SP 1312-03.  Alden Bungalows – FINAL PLAT. Final Plat approval for a 180 unit residential 

subdivision with related improvements within The Villages of Wildwood at Brownwood. (Staff 
Recommends Approval). 

 
3. PRESENTATIONS AND/OR PROCLAMATIONS   
 
4. PUBLIC HEARINGS – Timed - 
 Quasi-judicial Items 
 

a. ORDINANCE NO. O2014-08. Second final reading. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
WILDWOOD FLORIDA; PROPOSING A SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
MENDMENT TO THE ADOPTED LOCAL COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND FUTURE LAND 
USE MAP IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE COMMUNITY PLANNING ACT OF 2011, AS 
AMENDED; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; AND 



PAGE
AGENDA

2 

 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance changes the Future Land Use 
Map designation of parcel G08=023 totaling 0.41 acres from County “Rural Residential” to 
City “Commercial” (Attachments: Staff Recommends Approval). 

 
b. ORDINANCE NO. O2014-09. Second final reading. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 

WILDWOOD FLORIDA; PROPOSING A ZONING MAP AMENDMENT TO THE OFFICIAL 
ZONING MAP IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTIONS 3.2 AND 3.3 OF THE LAND 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance changes the 
Zoning Map designation of parcel G08=023 totaling 0.41 acres from County “R2C” to City 
“C-2: General Commercial - Neighborhood” (Attachments: Staff Recommends Approval). 

 
c. ORDINANCE NO. O2014-12; Second final reading. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 

WILDWOOD AMENDING CERTAIN PROVISIONS IN ORDINANCE NUMBER O2013-24; 
PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Ordinance is a revision to the Oxford Oaks Planned 
Development Ordinance O2013-24, adding twenty-one (21) single family homes to the 
original 247 units for a total of 268 units in Phase 1 (total of 563 residential units) with 
related improvements, pursuant to section 8.6 of the Land Development Regulations; for 
certain property within the City of Wildwood, owned by Mid Florida Properties, LLC based 
on a favorable recommendation by the Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate, case 
RZ 1305-02 (Attachments - Staff Recommends Approval). 

 
d. ORDINANCE NO. O2014-15.  Second final reading. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 

WILDWOOD, FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR THE VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION OF 
CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 0.31 ACRES BEING 
GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF C-466 AND EAST OF NE 36TH 

STREET; IN SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST; WHICH IS 
CONTIGUOUS TO THE CITY LIMITS OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA; 
PROVIDING THAT SECTION 1-14 OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD CODE OF 
ORDINANCES IS AMENDED TO INCLUDE THE ANNEXED PROPERTY; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Ordinance annexes Parcel D18=085 
totaling 0.31 acres.  This property is contiguous to the City, located in the Joint Planning 
Area with Sumter County,  and meets all legal requirements for annexation (Attachments: 
Staff Recommends Approval). 

  
e. (1) CDBG Public Hearing.  The City of Wildwood is considering applying to the Florida 

Department of Economic Opportunity for a grant under the FFY 2013 Neighborhood 
Revitalization (NR) category in the amount of $700,000 under the Small Cities Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program.   For each activity that is proposed, 70% of the 
funds must benefit low to moderate income (LMI) persons. The project is described 
generally as flood, drainage and street improvements to Oak Grove Village, Sunset Park 
and Young Circle. 

 
 (2) RESOLUTION NO. R2014-02 CDBG Enabling Resolution FFY 2013 CDBG-NR Grant 

Application.  RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD CITY COMMISSION, 
FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR, VICE MAYOR, CITY MANAGER, OR CITY 
CLERK IN HIS/HER ABSENCE TO MAKE APPLICATION TO THE FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY FOR APPROVAL OF A COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT, NEIGHBORHOOD REVITALIZATION  CATEGORY; 
FINDING THAT THE CDBG APPLICATION IS CONSISTENT WITH THE LOCAL 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND ADOPTING THE LOCAL COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AS 
THE CITY’S COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN;  PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
(Staff Recommends Approval). 



PAGE
AGENDA

3 

 

f.  ORDINANCE NO. O2014-10.  AT THE REQUEST OF THE APPLICANT, THIS ITEM IS TO 
BE DEFERRED TO A DATE CERTAIN OF MARCH 10, 2014 FOR PUBLIC HEARING. 
Second final reading. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD FLORIDA; 
PROPOSING A FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT TO THE ADOPTED LOCAL 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND FUTURE LAND USE MAP IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
COMMUNITY PLANNING ACT OF 2011, AS AMENDED; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. This Ordinance changes the Future Land Use Map designation of Parcels D20=002 
and D20=008 totaling 100.3 acres from County “Agricultural” to City “Low Density 
Residential”. 

 
g. ORDINANCE NO. O2014-11.  AT THE REQUEST OF THE APPLICANT, THIS ITEM IS TO 

BE DEFERRED TO A DATE CERTAIN OF MARCH 10, 2014 FOR PUBLIC HEARING. 
Second final reading. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD FLORIDA; 
PROPOSING A ZONING MAP AMENDMENT TO THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH SECTIONS 3.2 AND 3.3 OF THE LAND DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATIONS; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance changes the Zoning Map 
designation of Parcels D20=002 and D20=008 totaling 100.3 acres from County “A5” to City 
“R-1: Low Density Residential”. 

 
5. PUBLIC FORUM – 10 minute time limit 
 
6. ORDINANCES FIRST READING ONLY (NO VOTE) 
 
7. RESOLUTIONS FOR APPROVAL 
 

a.    Resolution R2014-03 – A Resolution Authoring Execution of a Railroad Reimbursement 
       Agreement For the Installation of Grade Crossing Traffic Control Devices, and Future  
       Maintenance and Adjustment of Said Devices; Providing for the Expenditure of Funds; and  
       Providing When this Resolution Shall Take Effect. (Staff Recommends Approval). 

 
8. FINANCIAL & CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS 

a.    Utility Department requests approval of the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)  
       between the City of Wildwood, Withlacoochee Regional Water Supply Authority and Marion   
       County.  (Attachments: Staff Recommends Approval) 
 
b.    Utility Department requests approval of the “Utilities Agreement” between the City of   
       Wildwood, Florida and Landstone-Wright, LLC.  (Attachments: Staff Recommends   
       Approval) 
 
c.    Utility Department requests approval of Barney’s Pumps, Inc. Quote No. 9922,  
       dated 12-18-13, in the amount of $12,499 to rebuild EQ Basin #1, Pump #2.  
       (Attachments: Staff Recommends Approval) 
     

9. GENERAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION/DISCUSSION and OTHER BUSINESS 
 a.    SP 1307-02.  Oxford Oaks PLAT - REVISED Improvement Plan. Revision to the approved  

      Improvement Plan adding twenty-one (21) single-family homes to the original 247 units for  
      a total of 268 units in Phase 1 (grand total of 563 residential units), with related  
      improvements. Based on favorable recommendation from the Special Magistrate (Staff  
      Recommends Approval). 
 

  



PAGE
AGENDA

4 

 

b.    First Amendment to the Oxford Oaks Developer’s Agreement, providing for an additional 
      21 ERUs per their request to modify their Planned Development (O2014-12) and their  
      Improvement Plan (SP 1307-02) (Attachments) (Staff Recommends Approval) 
 
c.    Discussion regarding Special Events, Seasonal Sales, Temporary Sales, and other related  
       events.  Staff is seeking Commission direction to revise guidelines and procedures for  
       these types of events, which require a permit from the City. 

 
10. APPOINTMENTS  
 
11. CITY MANAGER REPORTS 
  
12. CITY ATTORNEY REPORTS 
  
13. CITY CLERK REPORTS 
 
14. OTHER DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 
15. COMMISSION MEMBERS REPORTS 
  
16. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 

IMPORTANT DATES (No Attachments) 

a. March 10, 2014, Commission Meeting 7:00 p.m. 

b. March 24, 2014, Commission Meeting 7:00 p.m.  



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

CITY COMMISSION 
CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

SPECIAL CALLED MEETING 
DECEMBER 26, 2013  5:00 P.M. 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 
 
 
The City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida met in Special session December 26, 
2013 at 5:00 p.m. 
 
Present were: Mayor Wolf, Commissioners Bivins, Clark, Strickland and Green. Also present 
were: City Manager Cannon, Sr. Deputy Clerk Borrack, City Attorney Hunt, Police Chief Reeser.  
 
1. The meeting was called to order. Dispensed with other preliminaries.  
 
2. Police User Fee, Class Action Litigation, Consideration of hiring an Attorney specializing 
 in such matters.  
 
 CA Hunt noted that in previous meetings there had been some discussion of hiring an 

attorney who specializes in Class Action litigations in regards to the Police User Fee. He 
and Mayor Wolf met with the attorney for the Fruitland Park Police User fee case. All the 
pleadings were sent to him for review. After a conference call with he, Jerri Blair and the 
attorney they came to the conclusion that he would not be a good fit. Jerri had contacted 
George Carr an attorney from Orlando. Mr. Carr discussed some creative ideas as to 
handling the litigation. Has a theory of how to get the insurance company on board. 
Recommend that George Carr be contracted to as counsel to represent the City in this 
litigation.  

 
 CA Hunt noted that there has been a motion for summary judgment filed each way. Both 

alleging there is no genuine issue of fact and as a matter of law, ours saying we should 
win and theirs saying they should win. They are asking for a partial summary judgment 
which would dispense with the case without a trial. Mr. Carr has filed a notice of 
appearance so he can go online and check the pleadings. He has worked with Jerri Blair 
on several cases in governmental work and class action in the past. CA Hunt suggested 
the rate of $160 per hour which is his rate. Indicated that Jerri Blair will make a good 
witness for the case. Jerri Blair had filed several affirmative defenses just before he 
came on board. Judge Hallman, who runs his court similar to Federal Courts, had 
stricken all the Affirmative Defenses. Amended Affirmative Defenses have been refiled.  

 
 In response to questions from Commission, CA Hunt indicated Mr. Carr will carry the 

City through the entire process. Discussion has been to have Summary Judgment 
Hearing first then Class Notifications would be sent out by Plaintiff, if necessary. They 
are saying the User Fee was not valid. One of the defenses the City has is a Good Faith 
Event, which says the City acted in Good Faith. If the Plaintiff prevails and depending on 
the number of people included there could be a settlement amount that would be 
divided. He noted there is a Statute of limitations and the exposure could be cut in half. 
The Police User Fee has not been ruled upon and there seems to be no problem with 
Fire Department User Fees. CA Hunt reported that Fruitland Park’s is not going well, but 
there a many differences between the City of Wildwood and Fruitland Park’s ordinances.  

 
 

2.a. 
Page 1 of 2



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Minutes 
Page 2 
December 26, 2013 
 
 Mayor Wolf noted the Police User Fee took care of some “hot spots” in the City with 

additional police officers.  
 
 Motion by Commissioner Green, second by Commissioner Bivins for the City of 

Wildwood to contract with George Carr, Attorney as counsel for the Police User Fee 
litigation at a rate of $160 per hour. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
3. Adjournment 
 Upon a motion by Strickland, second by Commissioner Bivins the meeting was 

adjourned.  
 
        CITY COMMISSION 
        CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
 
 S E A L 
 
              
ATTEST:       Ed Wolf, Mayor 
  Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk 
 
 
 

2.a. 
Page 2 of 2



CITY COMMISSION-LEGISLATIVE DEPARTMENT

1 Payroll February 9, 2014 Pay Period - 5 Employees 3,724.94$      

CITY MANAGER-EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT

2 Payroll February 9, 2014 Pay Period - 2 Employees 6,158.01$      
3 Bright House Internet Service 75.86$           
4 EGP Per Copy Maintenance 14.49$           
5 Office Depot Office Supplies 11.59$           

CITY CLERK-FINANCIAL & ADMINISTRATIVE DEPARTMENT

6 Payroll February 9, 2014 Pay Period - 4 Employees 11,000.99$    
7 Bright House Internet Service 151.70$         
8 CRI Carr Riggs & Ingram Progress Billing on 2013 Audit 10,000.00$    
9 EGP Per Copy Maintenance 310.53$         
10 Federal Express Postage 77.43$           
11 Massey Services Pest Control 55.00$           
12 The Daily Commercial Ads 72.03$           
13 Verizon Cell Phone Service 1.25$             

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

14 Payroll February 9, 2014 Pay Period - 3.5 Employees 8,002.26$      
15 Bright House Internet Service 132.76$         
16 EGP Per Copy Maintenance 40.38$           
17 MMD Computer Center, Inc Remote Phone Support 120.00$         
18 The Daily Commercial Ads 3,614.07$      

HUMAN RESOURCES

19 Payroll February 9, 2014 Pay Period - 1 Employees 2,085.96$      
20 Bright House Internet Service 37.93$           
21 Office Depot Office Supplies 229.90$         

22 Payroll February 9, 2014 Pay Period - 35 Employees 86,029.53$    
23 Century Link Telephone Service 576.52$         
24 Chief Supply / Law Enforcement 8 Second Gun Timer 89.49$           
25 Department of Management Services Telephone Service 61.70$           
26 Duke Energy Electric Service 41.68$           
27 EGP Per Copy Maintenance 187.05$         
28 Federal Express Postage 20.11$           
29 Lawmen's and Shooters Winchester Ranger Buckshot, S&H 216.28$         
30 Massey Services Pest Control 21.00$           
31 Merritt Department Store Shirts w/ Zippers, Trousers 243.55$         
32 Pitney Bowes Postage Meter Refill 100.00$         
33 Pride Enterprises Property Receipts Forms 399.85$         
34 Ray Allen Manufacturing, LLC Blk Agitation Muzzle, Ultra Kimono Pol 1,659.98$      
35 Sumter County Tax Collector Tag and Title 2004 Ford Mustang 86.10$           
36 Sumter County Times Ads 54.38$           
37 Verizon Cell Phone Service 1,590.84$      

BILLS FOR APPROVAL

City of Wildwood, Florida

February 24, 2014

POLICE DEPARTMENT

2.b. 
Page 1 of 3



February 24 2014
Page 2

STREET DEPARTMENT

38 Payroll February 9, 2014 Pay Period - 9 Employees 17,433.87$    
39 Andreyev Engineering, Inc Roadway Coring 1,410.00$      
40 Bartow Ford Company F150 Truck 17,220.00$    
41 Duke Energy Electric Service 362.64$         
42 Massey Services Pest Control 10.00$           
43 Rainey  Asphalt, LLC Milled Asphalt 964.08$         
44 Sign Wizard Misc Decals 46.68$           
45 Sparr Building and Farm Supply Yellow Pine 100.51$         
46 Sumter County Tax Collector Tag and Title 2014 F150 88.10$           
47 Sumter Electric Electric Service 180.92$         
48 Verizon Cell Phone Service 142.40$         
49 Xpress Materials, LLC Regular Flyash 862.50$         

FLEET SERVICES

50 Payroll February 9, 2014 Pay Period - 2 Employees 5,231.85$      
51 Airgas Cylinder Renewal 629.00$         
52 EGP Per Copy Maintenance 0.64$             
53 Massey Services Pest Control 10.00$           
54 Verizon Cell Phone Service 6.99$             

COMMUNITY RE-DEVELOPMENT

55 Payroll February 9, 2014 Pay Period - .5 Employees 1,770.88$      
56 Bright House Internet Service 18.97$           
57 EGP Per Copy Maintenance 0.07$             

PARKS AND RECREATION

58 Payroll February 9, 2014 Pay Period - 5 Employees 7,207.84$      
59 Bartow Ford Company Two F150 Trucks 34,440.00$    
60 Bright House Internet Service 37.93$           
61 C.R. 466A Landfill Facility, LLC Tipping 40.46$           
62 Duke Energy Electric Service 875.46$         
63 EGP Per Copy Maintenance 3.00$             
64 Massey Services Pest Control 70.00$           
65 Natural Calls Inc. Port O Let 250.00$         
66 Office Depot Office Supplies 11.59$           
67 Resource One Cleaning Supplies 162.50$         
68 Sign Wizard Misc Decals 93.32$           
69 Sumter County Tax Collector Tag and Title 2014 F150 172.60$         
70 Sumter Electric Electric Service 161.89$         
71 Verizon Cell Phone Service 16.19$           

COMMUNITY CENTER & OXFORD COMMUNITY CENTER

72 EGP Per Copy Maintenance 0.28$             
73 Massey Services Pest Control 55.00$           
74 Oracle Elevator Service Call 345.50$         
75 Sumter Electric Electric Service 1,745.47$      

PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT ADMINISTRATIVE DEPARTMENT

76 Payroll February 9, 2014 Pay Period - 3 Employees 5,505.43$      
77 Bright House Internet Service 113.79$         
78 CRI Carr Riggs & Ingram Progress Billing on 2013 Audit 10,000.00$    
79 EGP Per Copy Maintenance 49.15$           
80 General Fund January Refuse Franchise 7,740.24$      
81 General Fund January Water Utility and Gas Consumption 8,148.84$      
82 Massey Services Pest Control 25.00$           
83 Postmaster Postage Utility Billing 260.77$         
84 Waste Management January Refuse Less 10% Franchise Fee 69,662.18$    

2.b. 
Page 2 of 3



February 24 2014
Page 3

UTILITY DEPARTMENT 

85 Payroll February 9, 2014 Pay Period - 23 Employees 47,409.28$    
86 Almac Unlimited, Inc Gloves Latex Powder Free, Gloves Vinyl 204.60$         
87 Bright House Internet Service 679.90$         
88 C & C Peat Co., Inc Wastewater Treatment-Dewatered Bio-Solids 3,080.00$      
89 Century Link Telephone Service 76.98$           
90 Duke Energy Electric Service 10,676.58$    
91 EGP Per Copy Maintenance 9.16$             
92 Engineer Service Corporation Service Call R12 Site 360.00$         
93 Evoqua Water Technologies SDI Mixed Bed, SDI React Carbon 616.00$         
94 HD Supply Waterworks Concrete Water Valve Ring 500.16$         
95 Martronics, Inc Batteries 88.98$           
96 Massey Services Pest Control 75.00$           
97 MMD Computer Center, Inc DNS2GO.Com 1 Yr. Subscription 69.00$           
98 Odyssey Manufacturing Company Hypochlorite Solution 2,464.27$      
99 Plant Technicians Environmental Testing 465.00$         
100 Pro Chem Natural Air, Suds Hand Soap, Trig Sprayer 392.25$         
101 Sumter Electric Electric Service 1,941.87$      
102 Sunshine State Fence and Gate DoorKing Prox Card Reader, Remotes, Labor, Svc 655.00$         
103 Sunshine State One Call of Florida Locators for Month of January 2014 282.67$         
104 TAW OEM Replacement 1,388.62$      
105 The Dumont Company, Inc Clear Flow 741.75$         
106 Tokay Software Navigator 6,630.00$      
107 UPS Postage 33.35$           
108 Verizon Cell Phone Service 235.79$         
109 Xylem Water Solutions USA Flush Valve 5,816.00$      

MISCELLANEOUS

GREENWOOD CEMETERY

ATTORNEYS/CONSULTANTS/SURVEYORS

110 Kimley-Horn & Associates Engineers 287.38$         
111 Potter Clement Bergholtz Alexander Special Magistrate 909.50$         

FUEL INVENTORY

112 Stone Petroleum Products, Inc Unleaded Gasoline 8,671.49$      

TOTAL  425,740.25$  

CITY COMMISSION
CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

S E A L 
                                                                                                                       
ATTEST:_______________________ Ed Wolf, Mayor

Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk

2.b. 
Page 3 of 3



CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

SUBJECT: SP 1312-03  Alden Bungalows – Final Plat 

REQUESTED ACTION: 
Final Plat approval (SP 1312-03)  

 Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: 2/24/2014 
 Regular Meeting  Special Meeting

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
Managing Division / Dept:

BUDGET IMPACT:

 Annual FUNDING SOURCE: 
 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 

The applicant seeks Final Plat approval from the City Commission for the Alden Bungalows Final Plat 
to subdivide a portion of parcel G08=096 into 180 single family lots.  This area is located within the 
Villages of Wildwood Development of Regional Impact (VOW DRI) nearby the area being developed 
as the Brownwood Town Square.  Staff recommends approval of the Final Plat for Alden 
Bungalows (case SP 1312-03). 

Case SP 1312-03 was considered by the Project Review Committee on Tuesday, January 21, 2014, 
as required under subsection 5.3(c)(4) of the Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with The Villages of 
Lake-Sumter, Inc.  The Project Review Committee gave a favorable recommendation of the Final Plat 
to the City Commission, subject to a resubmittal of the revised final plat in Mylar with the necessary 
documents for recording.  The final Mylar version was received from the applicant on February 5, 
2014.

Melanie D. Peavy 
Development Services Director 

2.c. 
Page 1 of 20



2.c. 
Page 2 of 20



2.c. 
Page 3 of 20



2.c. 
Page 4 of 20



2.c. 
Page 5 of 20



2.c. 
Page 6 of 20



2.c. 
Page 7 of 20



2.c. 
Page 8 of 20



2.c. 
Page 9 of 20



2.c. 
Page 10 of 20



2.c. 
Page 11 of 20



2.c. 
Page 12 of 20



2.c. 
Page 13 of 20



2.c. 
Page 14 of 20



2.c. 
Page 15 of 20



2.c. 
Page 16 of 20



2.c. 
Page 17 of 20



2.c. 
Page 18 of 20



2.c. 
Page 19 of 20



2.c. 
Page 20 of 20



CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

SUBJECT: Hoang Comp. Plan Amendment, CP 1312-02 

REQUESTED ACTION: 
Approval of Ordinance O2014-08. 

 Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: 2/10/14 First Reading 
2/24/14 Adoption 

 Regular Meeting  Special Meeting

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
Managing Division / Dept:

BUDGET IMPACT:

 Annual FUNDING SOURCE: 
 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 

The applicant, Brian Hoang, seeks approval for a Small Scale Future Land Use Map Amendment to 
the adopted Comprehensive Plan.  On February 6, 2014 the case was heard before the Planning and 
Zoning Board/Special Magistrate acting as the Local Planning Agency in which the Special Magistrate 
recommended approval of Ordinance O2014-08.  Staff also recommends approval of Ordinance 
02014-08 (attached).

The 0.41 +/- acre subject parcel is intended to be utilized as a future commercial development.  The 
amendment reassigns the property from Sumter County “Rural Residential” to City “Commercial.” 
Subject to approval of this small-scale land use change approval, the applicant has submitted a 
rezoning application for consideration. 

Staff believes a Future Land Use Map designation of “Commercial” is appropriate based on the 
intended use of the property and should be approved for the following reasons: 

 Justification of the proposed amendment has been adequately presented; 
 The proposed amendment is consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of the 

comprehensive plan specifically the Joint Planning Area Future Land Use Map;  
 The subject amendment does not meet the criteria of urban sprawl or exemplify an energy 

inefficient land use pattern; 
 The proposed amendment will not have an adverse effect on environmentally sensitive 

systems; 
 The proposed amendment will not adversely affect transportation, potable water, sewer, 

schools, or other public facilities without providing remedies to correct the system or facility. 

4.a. 
Page 1 of 11



The atta
existing a

Melanie
Developm

ached maps 
and propose

D. Peavy 
ment Service

illustrate th
ed Future La

es Director 

he subject p
and Use Map

parcel’s rela
p designation

ation to the 
ns within the

Hoa

surroundin
e vicinity. 

Page
ng SSCPA CP 1

Executive Su

g area as w

e 2 of 2 
312-02 

ummary 

well as the 

4.a. 
Page 2 of 11



4.a. 
Page 3 of 11



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

JANUARY 2014 LOCATION MAP

G08=023
HOANG PROPERTYCity of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 290 580

Feet

I:
\T

e
rr

i\G
IS

\M
a

p
s\

L
o

ca
tio

n
\L

o
ca

tio
n

 -
 H

o
a

n
g

.m
xd

 -
 1

/3
/2

0
1

4
 1

1
:5

1
:2

3
 A

M
 -

 t
o

n
e

a
l

C-44A

P
O

W
E

LL
 R

D

E SR 44

C
R

 1
54

A
P

H
IL

LI
P

S
 L

N

CR 154

C
R

 1
54

B

C-44A

E SR 44Legend

G08=023

City of Wildwood

4.a. 
Page 4 of 11



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

JANUARY 2014 EXISTING FUTURE LAND USE

G08=023
HOANG PROPERTYCity of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 290 580

Feet

I:
\T

e
rr

i\G
IS

\M
a

p
s\

E
xi

st
in

g
 &

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
L

U
\E

xi
st

in
g

 F
L

U
 -

 H
o

a
n

g
.m

xd
 -

 1
/7

/2
0

1
4

 1
:2

9
:4

9
 P

M
 -

 t
o

n
e

a
l

C-44A

P
O

W
E

LL
 R

D

C-44A

LDR

COM

LDR

VILLAGES OF WILDWOOD DIR

VILLAGES OF WILDWOOD DIR

REC

REC

Legend

G08=023

City of Wildwood

4.a. 
Page 5 of 11



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

JANUARY 2014 JPA LAND USE

G08=023
HOANG PROPERTYCity of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 290 580

Feet

I:
\T

e
rr

i\G
IS

\M
a

p
s\

JP
A

 F
L

U
\J

P
A

 F
L

U
 -

 H
o

a
n

g
.m

xd
 -

 1
/2

8
/2

0
1

4
 8

:5
2

:1
5

 A
M

 -
 t

o
n

e
a

l

P
O

W
E

LL
 R

D

C-44A

C-44A

COM

VILLAGES OF WILDWOOD DRI

PEU

Legend

JPA Boundary

City of Wildwood

G08=023

MDR

4.a. 
Page 6 of 11



Ordinance No. O2014-08 
G08=023 Small Scale Comprehensive Plan Amendment (Hoang Parcel) 

1 of 3

ORDINANCE NO. O2014-08 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD FLORIDA; 
PROPOSING A SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
AMENDMENT TO THE ADOPTED LOCAL 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE COMMUNITY PLANNING 
ACT OF 2011, AS AMENDED; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 WHEREAS, the City of Wildwood, Florida, is proposing to amend the local 
Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Map of said City, to include a land use 
amendment described as follows, to-wit: 

Parcel G08=023 
Hoang Parcel 
0.41 acres +/- 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE WEST 1/2 OF THE NORTH 
1/2 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 
19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, THENCE NORTH 89 
DEGREES 48 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST 101.80 FEET TO THE NORTH RIGHT 
OF WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD 44A, THENCE NORTH 65 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 
20 SECONDS WEST 33.23 FEET ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY FOR A POINT OF 
BEGINNING; CONTINUE NORTH 65 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 20 SECONDS WEST 
140 FEET, NORTH 0 DEGREES 04 MINUTES 10 SECONDS EAST 128.86 FEET, 
SOUTH 89 DEGREES 48 MINUTES 40 SECONDS EAST 127.51 FEET, SOUTH 0 
DEGREES 04 MINUTES 10 SECONDS WEST 186.23 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING.

ALSO COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE WEST 1/2 OF THE 
NORTH 1/2 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, 
TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, THENCE 
RUN NORTH 89 DEGREES 48 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST 101.80 FEET TO THE 
NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF SR 44A THENCE NORTH 65 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 
20 SECONDS WEST 173.23 FEET ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING, CONTINUE NORTH 65 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 20 SECONDS WEST 
10.00 FEET ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY THENCE NORTH 21 DEGREES 36 
MINUTES 01 SECONDS EAST 24.84 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 04 
MINUTES 10 SECONDS WEST 27.23 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

4.a. 
Page 7 of 11



Ordinance No. O2014-08 
G08=023 Small Scale Comprehensive Plan Amendment (Hoang Parcel) 

2 of 3

ALSO COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE WEST 1/2 OF THE 
NORTH 1/2 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, 
TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, (1) 
THENCE RUN NORTH 89 DEGREES 48 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST 101.80 
FEET TO THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF SR 44A, (2) THENCE NORTH 65 
DEGREES 34 MINUTES 20 SECONDS WEST 73.39 FEET ALONG SAID NORTH 
RIGHT-OF-WAY, (3) THENCE NORTH 24 DEGREES 25 MINUTES 40 SECONDS 
EAST 88.77 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, (1) THENCE NORTH 00 
DEGREES 04 MINUTES 10 SECONDS EAST 88.79 FEET, (2) THENCE SOUTH 89 
DEGREES 48 MINUTES 40 SECONDS EAST 40.16 FEET, (3) THENCE SOUTH 24 
DEGREES 25 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST 97.37 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING.

LESS AND EXCEPT  COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE WEST 
1/2 OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF 
SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, AS A POINT OF REFERENCE (1) THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 48 
MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST 101.80 FEET TO THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF 
HIGHWAY 44A, (2) THENCE NORTH 65 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 20 SECONDS 
WEST 33.20 FEET ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING OF THIS DESCRIPTION, (1) THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 04 
MINUTES 10 SECONDS EAST 97.44 FEET, (2) THENCE SOUTH 24 DEGREES 25 
MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST 88.77 FEET TO THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF 
HIGHWAY 44A, (3) THENCE SOUTH 65 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 20 SECONDS 
EAST 40.19 FEET ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

LESS AND EXCEPT  COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE WEST 
1/2 OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF 
SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA 
THENCE RUN NORTH 89 DEGREES 48 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST 101.80 
FEET TO THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF SR 44A, THENCE NORTH 65 DEGREES 
34 MINUTES 20 SECONDS WEST 173.23 FEET ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY 
THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 04 MINUTES 10 SECONDS EAST 27.23 FEET TO 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING, THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 04 MINUTES 10 
SECONDS EAST 101.52 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 48 MINUTES 40 
SECONDS EAST 40.0 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 21 DEGREES 36 MINUTES 01 
SECONDS WEST 109.05 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

CONTAINING 0.41 ACRES MORE OR LESS.

This property is to be reclassified from Sumter County comprehensive plan 
designation “Rural Residential” to City comprehensive plan designation “Commercial.” 

4.a. 
Page 8 of 11



Ordinance No. O2014-08 
G08=023 Small Scale Comprehensive Plan Amendment (Hoang Parcel) 

3 of 3

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED, by the City 
Commission of Wildwood, Florida, as follows: 

SECTION 1. The adopted local Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Map 
for the City of Wildwood, Florida, are hereby amended to include the above-referenced 
property and proposed land use amendment as indicated above. The amendment to the 
Future Land Use Map of the local comprehensive plan is attached hereto as “Exhibit A” 
and incorporated herein by reference.  

SECTION 2. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, be, and 
the same are hereby repealed.

SECTION 3. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held 
to be invalid or unconstitutional by a Court or competent jurisdiction, then said holding 
shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining portions of said Ordinance.
   

SECTION 4. This Ordinance shall take effect upon its final reading by the City 
Commission of the City of Wildwood. 

DONE AND ORDAINED this    day of    , 2014, by 
the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 

       CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

S E A L  

Ed Wolf, Mayor 

ATTEST:  ________________   
       Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk   

First Reading:      

Second Reading:      

Approved as to form: 

Ashley Hunt, City Attorney 

4.a. 
Page 9 of 11



Ordinance O2014-08 

“Exhibit A” 

G08=023 (Hoang Parcel) 

Proposed Future Land Use Map Designation 

4.a. 
Page 10 of 11



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

JANUARY 2014 PROPOSED FUTURE LAND USE

G08=023
HOANG PROPERTYCity of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 290 580

Feet

I:
\T

e
rr

i\G
IS

\M
a

p
s\

E
xi

st
in

g
 &

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
L

U
\P

ro
p

o
se

d
 F

L
U

 -
 H

o
a

n
g

.m
xd

 -
 1

/7
/2

0
1

4
 1

:3
8

:2
6

 P
M

 -
 t

o
n

e
a

l

C-44A

P
O

W
E

LL
 R

D

C-44A

LDR

COM

COM

VILLAGES OF WILDWOOD DIR

VILLAGES OF WILDWOOD DIR

REC

REC

Legend

G08=023

City of Wildwood

4.a. 
Page 11 of 11



SUBJEC

REQUES

CONTRA

BUDGET

Annua
 Capita
 N/A 

HISTORY

The app
County “

The 0.41
Road.  T
change t
General
Future La

Staff rec
which es

Case RZ
February
recomme

Melanie
Developm

CITY

CT: Ho

STED ACTIO

W

ACT:
Effe
Man

T IMPACT:

al
al

Y/FACTS/IS

licant, Brian
RC2” to City

 +/- acre su
The propert
the Future L
Commercia

and Use Ma

commends 
stablishes a

Z 1312-02 w
y 6th, 2014
endation of t

D. Peavy 
ment Service

Y COMMIS

ang Rezon

ON: 

Work Sessio

Regular Mee

N/A 
ective Date: 
naging Divis

FUNDING S
EXPENDITU

SSUES: 

n Hoang, se
y of Wildwoo

ubject proper
ty is subject
Land Use M
al - Neighbo
ap designatio

approval of
a future lan

was consider
4.  The P
the rezoning

es Director 

SSION OF

EXECUT

ning – RZ 1

Approval o

on (Report O

eting

__________
sion / Dept: 

SOURCE: 
URE ACCO

eeks approva
od “C-2: Gen

rty is located
t to a conc

Map designa
orhood” wou
on.  

f Ordinance
d use appro

red by the P
Planning & 
g to the City C

F THE CI

TIVE SUMM

1312-02

of Ordinanc

Only) DAT

S

Vend
____ Term

UNT: 

al from the 
neral Comme

d to the nort
current Sma
tion to City 
ld bring the

e O2014-09 
opriate to th

Planning & Z
Zoning B

Commission

ITY OF W

MARY 

ce O2014-0

TE OF MEET

Special Meet

dor/Entity:
mination Date

City Comm
ercial - Neig

thwest of the
all Scale Co

“Commercia
e property in

subject to a
he propose

Zoning Boar
Board/Specia
n.

WILDWOO

9.

TING: 2
2

ting

e:   

ission for a 
hborhood.”

e intersectio
omprehensiv
al”. The req
nto complia

approval of
d zoning.

rd/Special M
al Magistra

OD

2/10/14 First
2/24/14 Ado

rezoning fr

on of C-44A 
ve Plan ame
quested zoni
nce with the

f Ordinance

Magistrate on
ate gave a

t Reading 
ption

rom Sumter 

and Powell 
endment to
ing of “C-2: 
e proposed 

e O2014-08, 

n Thursday, 
a favorable 

4.b. 
Page 1 of 9



4.b. 
Page 2 of 9



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

JANUARY 2014 LOCATION MAP

G08=023
HOANG PROPERTYCity of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 290 580

Feet

I:
\T

e
rr

i\G
IS

\M
a

p
s\

L
o

ca
tio

n
\L

o
ca

tio
n

 -
 H

o
a

n
g

.m
xd

 -
 1

/3
/2

0
1

4
 1

1
:5

1
:2

3
 A

M
 -

 t
o

n
e

a
l

C-44A

P
O

W
E

LL
 R

D

E SR 44

C
R

 1
54

A
P

H
IL

LI
P

S
 L

N

CR 154

C
R

 1
54

B

C-44A

E SR 44Legend

G08=023

City of Wildwood

4.b. 
Page 3 of 9



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

JANUARY 2014 EXISTING ZONING

G08=023
HOANG PROPERTYCity of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 290 580

Feet

I:
\T

e
rr

i\G
IS

\M
a

p
s\

E
xi

st
in

g
 &

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 Z
o

n
in

g
\E

xi
st

in
g

 Z
o

n
in

g
 -

 H
o

a
n

g
 P

ro
p

e
rt

y.
m

xd
 -

 1
/7

/2
0

1
4

 9
:2

2
:3

1
 A

M
 -

 t
o

n
e

a
l

P
O

W
E

LL
 R

D

C-44A

C-44A

R2C

C-2

a5

PEU

V-WW

V-WW

Legend

G08=023

City of Wildwood

4.b. 
Page 4 of 9



Ordinance No. O2014-09 
G08=023 (Hoang Parcel) Rezoning 

1 of 3

ORDINANCE NO. O2014-09 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD FLORIDA; 
PROPOSING A ZONING MAP AMENDMENT TO THE 
OFFICIAL ZONING MAP IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
SECTIONS 3.2 AND 3.3 OF THE LAND DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATIONS; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

 WHEREAS, the City of Wildwood, Florida, is proposing to amend the Official 
Zoning Map of said City, to include a rezoning of real property described as follows, to-
wit:

Parcel G08=023 
Hoang Parcel 
0.41 acres +/- 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE WEST 1/2 OF THE NORTH 
1/2 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 
19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, THENCE NORTH 89 
DEGREES 48 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST 101.80 FEET TO THE NORTH RIGHT 
OF WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD 44A, THENCE NORTH 65 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 
20 SECONDS WEST 33.23 FEET ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY FOR A POINT OF 
BEGINNING; CONTINUE NORTH 65 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 20 SECONDS WEST 
140 FEET, NORTH 0 DEGREES 04 MINUTES 10 SECONDS EAST 128.86 FEET, 
SOUTH 89 DEGREES 48 MINUTES 40 SECONDS EAST 127.51 FEET, SOUTH 0 
DEGREES 04 MINUTES 10 SECONDS WEST 186.23 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING.

ALSO COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE WEST 1/2 OF THE 
NORTH 1/2 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, 
TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, THENCE 
RUN NORTH 89 DEGREES 48 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST 101.80 FEET TO THE 
NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF SR 44A THENCE NORTH 65 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 
20 SECONDS WEST 173.23 FEET ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING, CONTINUE NORTH 65 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 20 SECONDS WEST 
10.00 FEET ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY THENCE NORTH 21 DEGREES 36 
MINUTES 01 SECONDS EAST 24.84 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 04 
MINUTES 10 SECONDS WEST 27.23 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

ALSO COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE WEST 1/2 OF THE 
NORTH 1/2 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, 

4.b. 
Page 5 of 9



Ordinance No. O2014-09 
G08=023 (Hoang Parcel) Rezoning 

2 of 3

TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, (1) 
THENCE RUN NORTH 89 DEGREES 48 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST 101.80 
FEET TO THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF SR 44A, (2) THENCE NORTH 65 
DEGREES 34 MINUTES 20 SECONDS WEST 73.39 FEET ALONG SAID NORTH 
RIGHT-OF-WAY, (3) THENCE NORTH 24 DEGREES 25 MINUTES 40 SECONDS 
EAST 88.77 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, (1) THENCE NORTH 00 
DEGREES 04 MINUTES 10 SECONDS EAST 88.79 FEET, (2) THENCE SOUTH 89 
DEGREES 48 MINUTES 40 SECONDS EAST 40.16 FEET, (3) THENCE SOUTH 24 
DEGREES 25 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST 97.37 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING.

LESS AND EXCEPT  COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE WEST 
1/2 OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF 
SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, AS A POINT OF REFERENCE (1) THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 48 
MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST 101.80 FEET TO THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF 
HIGHWAY 44A, (2) THENCE NORTH 65 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 20 SECONDS 
WEST 33.20 FEET ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING OF THIS DESCRIPTION, (1) THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 04 
MINUTES 10 SECONDS EAST 97.44 FEET, (2) THENCE SOUTH 24 DEGREES 25 
MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST 88.77 FEET TO THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF 
HIGHWAY 44A, (3) THENCE SOUTH 65 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 20 SECONDS 
EAST 40.19 FEET ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

LESS AND EXCEPT  COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE WEST 
1/2 OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF 
SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA 
THENCE RUN NORTH 89 DEGREES 48 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST 101.80 
FEET TO THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF SR 44A, THENCE NORTH 65 DEGREES 
34 MINUTES 20 SECONDS WEST 173.23 FEET ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY 
THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 04 MINUTES 10 SECONDS EAST 27.23 FEET TO 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING, THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 04 MINUTES 10 
SECONDS EAST 101.52 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 48 MINUTES 40 
SECONDS EAST 40.0 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 21 DEGREES 36 MINUTES 01 
SECONDS WEST 109.05 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

CONTAINING 0.41 ACRES MORE OR LESS.

This property is to be reclassified from Sumter County “R2C: Low Density 
Residential with Conventional Housing” to City of Wildwood “C-2:  General Commercial: 
Neighborhood.”

 AND WHEREAS, the rezoning is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan 
and Land Development Regulations. 

4.b. 
Page 6 of 9



Ordinance No. O2014-09 
G08=023 (Hoang Parcel) Rezoning 

3 of 3

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED, by the City 
Commission of Wildwood, Florida, as follows: 

SECTION 1. The Official Zoning Map of the City of Wildwood, Florida is hereby 
amended to include the above-referenced property as indicated above. The amendment 
to the Official Zoning Map is attached hereto as “Exhibit A” and incorporated herein by 
reference.

SECTION 2. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, be, and 
the same are hereby repealed.

SECTION 3. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held 
to be invalid or unconstitutional by a Court or competent jurisdiction, then said holding 
shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining portions of said Ordinance.

SECTION 4. This Ordinance shall take effect upon its final reading by the City 
Commission of the City of Wildwood. 

DONE AND ORDAINED this    day of    , 2014, by 
the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 

       CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

S E A L  

Ed Wolf, Mayor 

ATTEST:  ________________   
       Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk   

First Reading:      

Second Reading:      

Approved as to form: 

Ashley Hunt, City Attorney 

4.b. 
Page 7 of 9



Ordinance O2014-09 

“Exhibit A” 

G08=023 (Hoang Parcel) 

Proposed Zoning Map Designation 

4.b. 
Page 8 of 9



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

JANUARY 2014 PROPOSED ZONING

G08=023
HOANG PROPERTYCity of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 290 580

Feet

I:
\T

e
rr

i\G
IS

\M
a

p
s\

E
xi

st
in

g
 &

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 Z
o

n
in

g
\P

ro
p

o
se

d
 Z

o
n

in
g

 -
 H

o
a

n
g

 P
ro

p
e

rt
y.

m
xd

 -
 1

/7
/2

0
1

4
 9

:1
8

:4
1

 A
M

 -
 t

o
n

e
a

l

P
O

W
E

LL
 R

D

C-44A

C-44A

C-2

C-2

a5

PEU

V-WW

V-WW

Legend

G08=023

City of Wildwood

4.b. 
Page 9 of 9



SUBJEC

REQUES

CONTRA

BUDGET

Annua
 Capita
 N/A 

HISTORY

The appli
zoned “R-
Agreemen

The Proje
applicant 
for a total 

Pursuant
Planned D
incorporat
standards

At the Feb
Ordinance

Staff reco

Melanie
Developm

CITY

CT: Ox

STED ACTIO

W

ACT:
Effe
Man

T IMPACT:

al
al

Y/FACTS/IS

cant seeks a
-1: Low Dens
nt via Ordinan

ect is an app
is revising Ph
of 268 housi

to Section 8.
Development 
ted into the O

s for the Proje

bruary 6th, 20
e O2014-12. 

ommends ap

D. Peavy 
ment Service

Y COMMIS

ford Oaks 

ON: 

Work Sessio

Regular Mee

N/A 
ective Date: 
naging Divis

FUNDING S
EXPENDITU

SSUES: 

a revision to 
sity Residenti
nce O2013-24

roved Planne
hase 1 of the 
ng units in Ph

.6 of the Land
Agreement.

Ordinance as 
ect. 

014 Planning a

pproval of Or

es Director

SSION OF

EXECUT

Planned D

Adoption o

on (Report O

eting

__________
sion / Dept: 

SOURCE: 
URE ACCO

the approved
al.”  The City
4 on Septemb

ed Developm
Planned Dev

hase 1, and a

d Developme
 The Project’
exhibits.  The

and Zoning B

rdinance Num

F THE CI

TIVE SUMM

Developme

of Ordinanc

Only) DAT

S

Vend
____ Term

UNT: 

d Planned D
y Commission
ber 24, 2013.

ent that is en
velopment to a
a grand total o

ent Regulation
s legal descr
e Planned De

Board Hearing

mber O2014-

ITY OF W

MARY 

ent RZ 1305

ce O2014-1

TE OF MEET

Special Meet

dor/Entity:
mination Date

Development 
n approved th

ntitled to buil
allow for twen
of 563 housing

ns, Ordinanc
iption and co
evelopment A

g, the Special

-12.

WILDWOO

5-02 Revis

2.

TING: 2
2

ting

e:   

(PD) on 218
he Oxford Oa

ld 542 reside
nty-one (21) m
g units within

e O2014-12 
nceptual dev

Agreement ou

l Magistrate r

OD

sion

2/10/14 First
2/24/14 Ado

.52 +/- acres
aks Planned D

ential dwelling
more single fa
 the whole de

amends the 
velopment pla
utlines specific

recommended

t Reading 
ption

s of property 
Development 

g units.  The 
amily homes, 
evelopment.

Oxford Oaks 
an have been 
c criteria and 

d approval of 

4.c. 
Page 1 of 14



4.c. 
Page 2 of 14



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

JUNE 2013 LOCATION MAP

OXFORD OAKS
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 190 380

Feet

I:\
Te

rr
i\G

IS
\M

a
p

s\
L

oc
a

tio
n

\L
o

ca
tio

n
 -

 O
xf

o
rd

 O
a

ks
.m

xd
 -

 6
/2

4
/2

0
13

 1
:4

5
:3

9
 P

M
 -

 t
o

n
e

al

C
R

 2
09

CR 222

C-466 E

CR 214

CR 216

N
 U

S
 3

0
1

C
R

 2
01

N
E

 2
7t

h 
S

T

C-472

CR 106

CR 108

CR 114

CR 110

C
R

 2
07

C
R

 2
07

 W

Legend

Oxford Oaks

City of Wildwood Re-Pump Station

City of Wildwood

Parcels

4.c. 
Page 3 of 14



Page 1 of  4 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-12

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
AMENDING CERTAIN PROVISIONS IN ORDINANCE  
NUMBER O2013-24; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, Mid Florida Properties, L.L.C. (hereinafter the “Developer”) filed an 
application for a Planned Development which together with supporting documents, 
analyses, maps, charts, other evidence and instruments, the advice, report and 
recommendations of the Project Review Committee and the testimony adduced and 
evidence received at the Public Hearing by the Planning and Zoning Board on June 27, 
2013 and September 3, 2013; and 

WHEREAS, based upon such materials and otherwise being fully informed the 
City Commission duly adopted Ordinance No. 2013-24 on September 24, 2013; and 

WHEREAS, since the adoption of Ordinance No. 2013-24, the City Commission 
duly adopted Ordinance No. 2013-56 which amended certain sections of the City’s Land 
Development Regulations pertaining to Planned Development; and 

WHEREAS, at this time, the Developer desires to make certain amendments to 
Ordinance No. 2013-24 to utilize certain changes to the City’s Land Development 
Regulations enacted by the adoption of Ordinance No. 2013-56. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED, by the City 
Commission of Wildwood, Florida, as follows: 

SECTION 1. Ordinance Number O2013-24 of the City of Wildwood, Florida is 
hereby amended as indicated below.

1. All terms and provisions of Ordinance Number 2013-24 shall remain the 
same unless specifically amended below. 

2. Section 3, Paragraph B, is amended by restating Paragraph B of Section 3 
as set forth below: 

  B. Conceptual Development Plan.  The Project includes a conceptual 
development plan pursuant to Section 8.4 of the Land Development 
Regulations.  The Conceptual Development Plan prepared by 
Farner Barley and Associates, Inc. dated November 25, 2013 (as 
revised to denote sidewalk requirements) is incorporated into this 
Ordinance as “Exhibit B” attached hereto.  The conceptual 
development plan is substantially consistent with City of Wildwood 

4.c. 
Page 4 of 14



Page 2 of  4 

Comprehensive Plan. 

   1) The conceptual development plan illustrates the general 
location of the following land uses: 

    a. Single Family Residential; 
    b. Common areas and buffer easements (open spaces); 
    c. Recreational (Parks and open spaces) 

   2) The conceptual development plan is conceptual in nature 
and may be affected or modified by final zoning approval 
and conditions, by compensating storage capacity in flood 
prone areas, final wetland or protected species locations and 
jurisdictional boundaries, final engineering, permitting, 
surveys, or conservation easements. 

3. Section 3, Paragraph C is amended by restating Paragraph C of Section 3 
as set forth below: 

  C. Development Program.  The Project shall be developed in two 
phases.  The phases are shown on “Exhibit B” Conceptual 
Development Plan attached hereto. 

   1) Residential Development.  The residential component of the 
Project shall contain no more than 561 single family 
detached housing units/lots and at least one attached 
housing unit/lot with two dwelling units. 

   2) Maximum Development Potential.  Residential development 
within the Project shall not exceed four (4) dwelling 
units/acre.  The maximum number of residential units/lots in 
the Project is 563. 

4. Section 3, Paragraph F is amended by restating Paragraph F of Section 3 
as set forth below: 

  F. Developer’s Agreement.  Prior to approval of subdivision 
preliminary plans, the City and the Developer agree to enter into an 
amendment to the Developer’s (Utility) Agreement dated October 
14, 2013 to address the provision of water and wastewater to the 
Project.  The agreement, as amended, shall also specify, among 
other items, the ownership and maintenance of the utilities 
infrastructure associated with the Project. 

5. Section 3, Paragraph J, Subsection 4) is amended by restating Paragraph 

4.c. 
Page 5 of 14



Page 3 of  4 

J, Subsection 4) of Section 3 as set forth below: 

  4) Landscape Design.  Yard and common area landscaping will be in 
conformance with the City of Wildwood Land Development 
Regulations and as generally depicted in “Exhibit C” attached 
hereto.

6. Section 3, Paragraph L, Subsection 3) is amended by restating Section 3, 
Paragraph L, Subsection 3) as set forth below: 

  3) Stormwater.  The Project shall contain a stormwater management 
system which meets the requirements of the Southwest Florida 
Water Management District, and Chapter  6, section 6.4 of the 
City’s Land Development Regulations, as set forth in Ordinance No. 
2013-56.  Drainage retention basins will not be fenced. 

7. Section 3, Paragraph M, Subsection 3), Subsection c. is amended by 
restating Section 3, Paragraph M, Subsection 3), Subsection c. as set forth below: 

  c. The Project shall provide sidewalks shown on “Exhibit C” attached 
hereto.  The Project shall not provide sidewalks or multi-model 
paths along County Roads 214 and 209.  Sufficient right of way 
along C.R. 214 will be dedicated to the City as shown on “Exhibit’s 
B and C” so the City may construct a sidewalk should future needs 
warrant construction.  A tract of land along County Road 209 will be 
dedicated to the City as shown on “Exhibit’s B and C” so the City 
may construct a multi-model path should future needs warrant 
construction.

8. Section 3, Paragraph P is amended by restating Section 3, Paragraph P 
as set forth below: 

  P. Expiration of Planned Development Agreement.  Actual 
construction must begin within the Planned Development within 24 
months of the final adoption of the amendment to the Planned 
Development Agreement.  If no construction has started on the 
approved Planned Development within 24 months, the Planned 
Development shall lapse and be of no further effect.  The City 
Commission may extend the Planned Development for periods of 
up to six (6) months provided the applicant can show good cause 
why the said Project was delayed under the originally approved 
Planned Development Agreement.  However, the City Commission 
shall not allow extensions to the commencement of construction 

4.c. 
Page 6 of 14



Page 4 of  4 

beyond 48 months after the effective date of this Ordinance.  
Notwithstanding anything in the foregoing, once construction has 
commenced, construction may continue until the completion of the 
Project.

SECTION 2. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, be, and 
the same are hereby repealed.

SECTION 3. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held 
to be invalid or unconstitutional by a Court or competent jurisdiction, then said holding 
shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining portions of said Ordinance.

SECTION 4. This Ordinance shall take effect upon its final reading by the City 
Commission of the City of Wildwood. 

DONE AND ORDAINED this    day of    , 2014, by 
the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 

       CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

S E A L  

Ed Wolf, Mayor 

ATTEST:        
       Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk   

First Reading:      

Second Reading:      

Approved as to form: 

Ashley Hunt, City Attorney 

4.c. 
Page 7 of 14



 

4.c. 
Page 8 of 14



 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
A PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, 
SUMTER COUNTY FLORIDA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SAID 
SECTION 18; THENCE N00°26'23"E ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4 A 
DISTANCE OF 1323.97 FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE 
SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 18; THENCE S89°23'32"E ALONG SAID NORTH LINE A 
DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUE 
S89°23'32"E, ALONG SAID NORTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 1273.53 FEET TO THE WEST LINE 
OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 18; THENCE 
N00°26'06"E ALONG SAID WEST LINE A DISTANCE OF 1323.63 FEET TO THE NORTH LINE 
OF SAID NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE S89°22'39"E ALONG SAID 
NORTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 1114.72 FEET TO A POINT 208.71 FEET WEST OF THE EAST 
LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE PARALLEL WITH SAID 
EAST LINE RUN S00°25'50"W A DISTANCE OF 208.71 FEET; THENCE PARALLEL WITH 
SAID NORTH LINE RUN S89°22'39"E A DISTANCE OF 208.71 FEET TO A POINT ON SAID 
EAST LINE; THENCE N00°25'50"E, ALONG SAID EAST LINE A DISTANCE OF 28.71 FEET TO 
A POINT 180.00 FEET SOUTH OF THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID 
SECTION 18; THENCE PARALLEL WITH SAID NORTH LINE RUN S89°22'39"E A DISTANCE 
OF 2529.92 FEET TO THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY OF STATE ROAD NO. 35 (U.S. 301); 
THENCE S00°57'08"E ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY A DISTANCE OF 574.88 FEET; THENCE 
DEPARTING SAID RIGHT OF WAY S87°03'31"W A DISTANCE OF 89.10 FEET TO A POINT 
ON THE SOUTH LINE OF THE LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 1628 
PAGE 483, PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE N89°22'32"W 
ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 151.16 FEET TO THE WEST LINES OF THE 
LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 1628 PAGE 481 AND OFFICIAL 
RECORDS BOOK 1628, PAGE 483; THENCE S00°36'51"W ALONG SAID WEST LINES A 
DISTANCE OF 204.69 FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL 
RECORDS BOOK 155, PAGE 73, PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA; 
THENCE N89°20'28"W ALONG SAID NORTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 16.14 FEET TO THE 
WEST LINE THEREOF; THENCE S00°57'08"E ALONG SAID WEST LINE A DISTANCE OF 
360.00 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF 
SAID SECTION 18; THENCE N89°20'28"W ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 
967.51 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF 
SAID SECTION 18; THENCE S00°25'03"W ALONG SAID EAST LINE A DISTANCE OF 1296.13 
FEET TO A POINT 28.00 FEET NORTH OF THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF 
THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 18; THENCE PARALLEL WITH SAID SOUTH LINE 
RUN N89°18'18"W A DISTANCE OF 1328.34 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF THE 
SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 18; SAID POINT ALSO BEING 
28.00 FEET NORTH OF THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 
1/4; THENCE PARALLEL WITH SAID SOUTH LINE RUN N89°24'24"W A DISTANCE OF 
1323.63 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF AFORESAID SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE 
SOUTHWEST 1/4; POINT ALSO BEING 28.00 FEET NORTH OF THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 
SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE PARALLEL WITH SAID SOUTH LINE 
RUN N89°24'24"W A DISTANCE OF 317.83 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EASTERLY 
BOUNDARY OF THOSE LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 1884, PAGE 
366, PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE ALONG THE 
BOUNDARY OF SAID LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 1884, PAGE 366 
THE FOLLOWING THREE (3) COURSES: THENCE RUN N00°38'26"E A DISTANCE OF 199.08 
FEET; THENCE N89°21'34"W A DISTANCE OF 208.72; THENCE S00°38'26"W A DISTANCE 

4.c. 
Page 9 of 14



OF 199.25 FEET TO A POINT 28.00 FEET NORTH OF SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE 
SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE PARALLEL WITH SAID SOUTH LINE 
RUN N89°24'24"W A DISTANCE OF 747.09 FEET TO A POINT 50.00 FEET EAST OF THE 
WEST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 18; 
THENCE PARALLEL WITH SAID WEST LINE RUN N00°26'23"E A DISTANCE OF 1295.96 
FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

4.c. 
Page 10 of 14



 

4.c. 
Page 11 of 14



4.c. 
Page 12 of 14



 

4.c. 
Page 13 of 14



4.c. 
Page 14 of 14



SUBJEC
 
 
REQUES
 
 

 
 

CONTRA
 
 
 
 
BUDGET
 

 Annua
 Capita
 N/A 

    
 

HISTORY
 
The app
annexatio
located a
 
Annexati
contained
 
The app
applicatio
future sh
 
Staff rec
 

Melanie 
Developm
 
 

 

CITY

CT: Ord

STED ACTIO

 W

 
 
 

ACT:  
Effe
Man

T IMPACT: 

al 
al 

                          

Y/FACTS/ISS

plicant, Willi
on applicatio
at the southw

on into the 
d within the 

plicant has 
ons for the 
ould the Co

commends a

D. Peavy 
ment Service

Y COMMIS

dinance O2

ON: 

Work Sessio

Regular Mee

N/A 
ective Date: 
naging Divis

 
 
FUNDING S
EXPENDITU
 
                          

UES: 

am Keen f
on for parce
west corner o

City is app
City’s Joint 

submitted 
subject prop
mmission m

approval of

es Director 

SSION OF

EXECUT

2014-15: A
 

on (Report O

eting 

__________
sion / Dept: 

SOURCE: 
URE ACCO

                          

for Baltic P
el D18=085.
of the interse

propriate be
Planning Are

a Small S
perty. Those

move to anne

f Ordinance

 

F THE CI
 

TIVE SUMM
 

Annexation

Appro

Only) DAT

 S
 

Vend
____ Term

 

UNT: 

                 

Property Ma
 The proper
ection of C-4

ecause the 
ea with Sum

Scale Comp
e application

ex the proper

e O2014-15.

ITY OF W

MARY 

n of Parcel 

oval of Ordin

TE OF MEET

Special Meet

dor/Entity:  
mination Date

 
 
 

anagement, 
rty to be an
466 and NE 

property is 
mter County.

prehensive 
ns will be b
rty.  

WILDWOO

D18=085 (

nance O20

TING: 2
2

ting  
 

 
e:   

LLC, has 
nnexed totals

36th Street. 

contiguous 

Plan Amen
brought to C

OD 

(Baltic Pro

014-15 

2/10/14 First
2/24/14 Ado

submitted a
s 0.31 +/- a

to the City

ndment and
Commission 

perty) 

t Reading 
ption 

a voluntary 
acres and is 

y limits and 

d Rezoning 
in the near 

4.d. 
Page 1 of 5



 

Ordinance O2014-15 
D18=085 Annexation: Baltic Property Management, LLC 

Page 1 of 2 

ORDINANCE NO. O2014-15 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 
FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR THE VOLUNTARY 
ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 0.31 ACRES BEING 
GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF C-466 
AND EAST OF NE 36TH STREET; IN SECTION 18, 
TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST; WHICH IS 
CONTIGUOUS TO THE CITY LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA; PROVIDING THAT SECTION 1-14 
OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD CODE OF ORDINANCES IS 
AMENDED TO INCLUDE THE ANNEXED PROPERTY; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   
 

Now, therefore, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of 
Wildwood, Florida: 

 
 SECTION 1.  Based upon the petition of the owner of the following described real 
property, which is generally located on the southwest corner of C-466 and NE 36th 
Street, to be annexed into the City the property is hereby annexed into the City of 
Wildwood pursuant to Section 171.044, Florida Statutes.  The City Commission finds 
that the property is located within the City’s Joint Planning Area with Sumter County, is 
contiguous to the municipal limits of the City of Wildwood, and meets all legal 
requirements for annexation.  The annexed property lying in Sumter County, Florida 
owned by Baltic Property Management Group, LLC, is more particularly described as 
follows: 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
Parcel # D18=085 

0.31 +/- Acres 
 
COMMENCE AT THE N.E. CORNER OF THE SW 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 
18, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST AS A POINT OF REFERENCE: 
THENCE RUN N 89° 53' 43" W 591.94' ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF THE SW 1/4 OF 
THE NE 1/4 FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING: (1) CONTINUE N 89° 53' 43" W 
107.00' ALONG THE ABOVE SAID NORTH LINE; (2) THENCE S 01° 22' 29" E 153.00'; 
(3) THENCE S 89° 53' 43" E 107.00'; (4) THENCE N 01° 22' 29" W 153.00' TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING TO CLOSE. LESS THAT PART LYING IN S.R. 466 RIGHT OF 
WAY. 
 
CONSISTING OF 13,431 SQ. FT. OR 0.31 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

 
 

4.d. 
Page 2 of 5



 

Ordinance O2014-15 
D18=085 Annexation: Baltic Property Management, LLC 

Page 2 of 2 

SECTION 2.  All of the above described annexed property shall be liable for its 
proportionate share of the future and existing indebtedness of the City of Wildwood. 
 

SECTION 3.  All of the above described annexed property shall be subject to the 
laws and ordinance of the City of Wildwood as if this territory had been a part of the City 
of Wildwood at the time of passage and approval of said laws and ordinances. 
 

SECTION 4.  Until such time as the City amends its Comprehensive Plan, the 
current Sumter County zoning classification and future land use map designation will 
remain in full force and effect. 
 

SECTION 5.  Section 1-14 of the City of Wildwood Code of Ordinances is hereby 
amended to include the legal description of the annexed parcel pursuant to this 
Ordinance.  The location map identifying the property to be annexed are attached 
hereto as “Exhibit A” and incorporated herein by reference. 
 

SECTION 6. If any portion of this Ordinance is declared invalid for any purpose, 
the remaining portion shall remain valid and in full force and effect. 
 

SECTION 7.  This Ordinance shall take effect upon final approval by the City 
Commission. 
 

DONE AND ORDAINED this ____  day of _____, 2014, by the City Commission 
of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 
 
SEAL 
 
ATTEST: CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
 
 
___________________________ _____________________________ 
Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk Ed Wolf, Mayor 
 
First Reading:  _______________ 
 
Second Reading:  _______________ 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Ashley Hunt, City Attorney 

4.d. 
Page 3 of 5



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ordinance O2014-15 

“Exhibit A” 

Baltic Property Annexation (D18=085) 

Location Map 

 

4.d. 
Page 4 of 5



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA
FEBRUARY 2014 LOCATION MAP

D18=065
BALTIC PROPERTY MANAGEMENTCity of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 290 580

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS\

Ma
ps

\Lo
ca

tio
n\L

oc
ati

on
 - B

alt
ic 

Pr
op

ert
y M

gt.
mx

d -
 2/

4/2
01

4 2
:55

:59
 PM

 - t
on

ea
l

N
 U

S
 3

0
1

C-466 E

C
R

 2
01

N
E

 3
6t

h 
S

T

N
 U

S
 3

0
1

Legend
D18=085

City of Wildwood

4.d. 
Page 5 of 5



SUBJEC
 
 
REQUES

 
 
 
 

CONTRA
 
 
 
 
BUDGET
 

 Annua
 Capita
 N/A 

    
 

HISTORY
 
The City 
grant un
under the
is propos
described
and Youn
 
Attached
applicatio
Developm
of Resol
 

Melanie 
Developm
 
 

 

CITY

CT: CD

STED ACTIO

 W
 

 
 

ACT:  
Effe
Man

T IMPACT: 

al 
al 

                          

Y/FACTS/IS

of Wildwood
der the FFY
e Small Citie
sed, 70% of
d generally 
ng Circle. 

d is Resolut
on to the 
ment Block G
lution R201

D. Peavy 
ment Service

Y COMMIS

DBG-NR Gr

ON: 

Work Sessio
Regular Mee

N/A 
ective Date: 
naging Divis

 
 
FUNDING S
EXPENDITU
 
                          

SSUES: 

d is conside
Y 2013 Nei
es Communi
f the funds 
as flood, dr

tion R2014-
Florida Dep
Grant in the 
4-02. 

es Director 

SSION OF

EXECUT

rant Applic
 
Public Hea
authorizing
application
for approva
Neighborh

on (Report O
eting 

__________
sion / Dept: 

SOURCE: 
URE ACCO

                          

ring applying
ghborhood 
ity Developm
must benef

rainage and

-02, which 
partment of
Neighborho

 

F THE CI
 

TIVE SUMM
 

cation – En

aring and ap
g the appro
n to the Flor
al of a Com
ood Revita

Only) DAT
 S

 

Vend
____ Term

 

UNT: 

                 

g to the Flor
Revitalizatio

ment Block G
fit low to mo
 street impr

authorizes 
f Economic 
ood Revitaliz

ITY OF W

MARY 

nabling Res

pproval of R
priate City 
rida Depart

mmunity Dev
lization (CD

TE OF MEET
Special Meet

dor/Entity:  
mination Date

 
 
 

rida Departm
on (NR) cat
Grant (CDBG
oderate inco
rovements to

the appropr
Opportunit

zation categ

WILDWOO

solution 

Resolution 
representa

tment of Ec
velopment 
DBG-NR) c

TING: F
ting  

 

 
e:   

ment of Econ
tegory in th
G) Program.
ome (LMI) p
o Oak Grov

riate City re
ty for appr
ory.  Staff r

OD 

R2014-02 
ative to mak
conomic Op
Block Gran

category. 

February 24

nomic Oppo
e amount o
.   For each 
persons. Th
ve Village, S

epresentativ
roval of a 
recommend

ke 
pportunity 
nt in the 

4, 2014 

ortunity for a 
of $700,000 
activity that 
e project is 

Sunset Park 

ve to make 
Community 

ds approval 

4.e. 
Page 1 of 3



 RESOLUTION 2014-02 
 

FFY 2013 CDBG-NR Grant Application  
  

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD CITY COMMISSION, FLORIDA, 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR, VICE MAYOR, CITY MANAGER, OR CITY CLERK IN 
HIS/HER ABSENCE TO MAKE APPLICATION TO THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 
ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY FOR APPROVAL OF A COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
BLOCK GRANT, NEIGHBORHOOD REVITALIZATION  CATEGORY; FINDING THAT 
THE CDBG APPLICATION IS CONSISTENT WITH THE LOCAL COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN AND ADOPTING THE LOCAL COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AS THE CITY’S 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Wildwood, Florida is experiencing a need for physical 

improvements in one or more low-to-moderate income neighborhoods; and 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City Commission that local residents be assisted in 

creating an improved living environment in these areas. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA; 

SECTION 1.  That the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program is 

declared to be a workable program for providing needed physical improvements in the low-

to-moderate income area(s) indicated in the proposed FFY 2013 CDBG application. 

SECTION 2.  The City Commission hereby directs the Mayor, Vice Mayor, City 

Manager or City Clerk in his/her absence, to sign all necessary certifications of the 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) application. 

SECTION 3.  That the City Commission directs the Mayor, Vice Mayor, City 

Manager or City Clerk in his/her absence to execute and submit the CDBG grant 

application to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity for state approval.  

SECTION 4.  That the Mayor, Vice Mayor, City Manager or City Clerk in his/her 

absence, is authorized and directed to submit additional information in a timely manner as 

4.e. 
Page 2 of 3



may be required by the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity during the application 

review process and after execution of a contract agreement with the Department. 

SECTION 5.  The proposed CDBG application is consistent with the local 

comprehensive plan. 

SECTION 6.  The City’s comprehensive plan is hereby adopted as the City’s 

community development plan. 

SECTION 7.  That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 

 DONE AND RESOLVED, this _____ day of February, 2014, in regular session, 

by the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 

 
 

CITY COMMISSION 
CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
 
 

(SEAL)     ___________________________________ 
       Ed Wolf, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: ________________________ 

Joseph Jacobs 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Ashley Hunt, City Attorney 
 

4.e. 
Page 3 of 3



SUBJEC

 
 
REQUES
 
 
 
 

CONTRA
 
 
 
 
BUDGET
 

 Annua
 Capita
 N/A 

 
 
HISTORY
 
Resolutio
the FDOT
Crossing
 
Ownersh
approval 
 
The key 

 C
 A

co
 T

b
 
The Agre
Staff re
Agreeme
 

 
Jason F. 
Assistant
 
 

CITY

CT: Ra
Cro

STED ACTIO

 W
 

 
 

ACT:  
Effe
Man

T IMPACT: 

al 
al 

Y/FACTS/ISS

on R2014-03
T, City, and 

g Signals at t

hip and main
of the Interl

terms of the
CSX will insta
After complet
osts 

The City is r
illed by CSX

eement has 
commends

ent. 

McHugh, A
t City Manag

Y COMMIS

ilroad Reim
ossing Sig

ON: 

Work Sessio
Regular Mee

N/A 
ective Date: 
naging Divis

  
 
FUNDING S
EXPENDITU
 

UES: 

3 authorizes
CSX Trans

the Lynum S

ntenance of 
ocal Service

e Agreement
all the crossi
tion, CSX w

esponsible f
X accordingly

been review
s approval 

 

ICP 
ger/Director 

SSION OF

EXECUT

mburseme
nals at Lyn
 

on (Report O
eting 

____ 
sion / Dept: 

                   

SOURCE: 
URE ACCO

s the City to
portation Inc

Street crossi

Lynum Stre
e Boundary A

t are as follow
ing signals a

will be respo

for the rema
y 

wed by all po
of Resolu

of Strategic 

F THE CI
 

TIVE SUMM
 

ent Agreem
num Stree

A

Only) DAT
 S

 

Vend
Term
    Pu

              $2

UNT: 

o execute a 
c. for the ins
ng of the CS

et/C-44A wa
Agreement/J

ws: 
and will be re
onsible for o

aining 50% 

otentially affe
ution R2014

Planning 

ITY OF W

MARY 

ment Betw
et (C-44A)

Approval of

TE OF MEET
Special Meet

dor/Entity:  
mination Date
ublic Works

2,136/year 
 
General Fu
 

Railroad Re
stallation and
SX rail line. 

as transferre
Joint Plannin

eimbursed b
operation an

of the annu

ected Depar
4-03 and e

WILDWOO

ween FDOT

f R2014-03

TING: F
ting  

 

 
e:   
s 

und 

eimburseme
d maintenan

ed from the 
ng Area. 

by FDOT for 
d 50% of th

ual maintena

rtments inclu
execution o

OD 

T, City, and

3 

February 24

ent Agreeme
nce of Autom

County to C

installation 
he annual m

ance costs 

uding the Ci
of the Reim

d CSX for 

4, 2014 

ent between 
matic Grade 

City with the 

costs 
maintenance

and will be 

ty Attorney. 
mbursement 

7.a. 
Page 1 of 19



7.a. 
Page 2 of 19



7.a. 
Page 3 of 19



7.a. 
Page 4 of 19



7.a. 
Page 5 of 19



7.a. 
Page 6 of 19



7.a. 
Page 7 of 19



7.a. 
Page 8 of 19



7.a. 
Page 9 of 19



7.a. 
Page 10 of 19



7.a. 
Page 11 of 19



7.a. 
Page 12 of 19



7.a. 
Page 13 of 19



7.a. 
Page 14 of 19



7.a. 
Page 15 of 19



7.a. 
Page 16 of 19



7.a. 
Page 17 of 19



7.a. 
Page 18 of 19



7.a. 
Page 19 of 19



 

 

CITY OF WILDWOOD 

 

CITY COMMISSION REPORT Commission Meeting Date: Feb. 24, 2014  
 

Subject: Champagne Farm Wells (CFW) 
 
Submitted By:  Bruce H. Phillips, PE, PLS, Utility Director 
 
Department:  Utility Department 
 
 

Staff Recommendation (Motion Ready): Recommend approval of the Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) between the City of Wildwood, Withlacoochee Regional Water 
Supply Authority and Marion County. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 

 An agreement between the City of Wildwood, Florida and Champagne Farm, Inc. dated 
April 14, 2008 and recorded in OR Book 1943, pages 221 – 231 provided for Champagne 
Farm to transfer ownership of 6 acres to the City and in return the Developer 
(Champagne Farm, Inc.) will owe no water TIE  fees. 

 The City constructed two (2) Lower Floridan Aquifer wells on the Champagne Farm site 
in 2010, these wells were to serve as Alternative Water Supply wells (AWS). 

 Florida Statutes provides a definition for ground water to be qualified as AWS. (salinity 
as measured by Total Dissolved Solids must be greater than 500 mg/l. The TDS of these 
wells ranges from 215 mg/l to 490 mg/l. 

 The well construction was paid for by the City while the Southwest Florida Water 
Management District (SWFWMD) paid for the cost of the testing of the wells. 

  The City’s consultant, Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. (KHA), prepared a report titled 
“ Champagne Farm Preliminary Design Report” (PDR) providing for design criteria and 
an opinion of probable cost for the construction of a water treatment plant (WTP) on the 
Champagne Farm site and a distribution system to connect with the City’s existing 
distribution system. 

 The City is a member of the Withlacoochee Regional Water Supply Authority 
(WRWSA). 

 WRWSA has retained Cardno Entrix to prepare a “2014 Water Supply Plan Update”. 
 As amember of the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) for this update, I attend all of 

the TAC meeting.  
 

FINDING, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

 FINDINGS: 

 The Champagne Farm wells are located on the west side of I-75, at the northern 
end of CR 231 approximately 9,000 feet north of SR 44 and approximately 
19,000 feet west/southwest of the City’s CR 214 Re-Pump Station. 

8.a. 
Page 1 of 12



 There are three Developments of Regional Impact (DRI) located in the 
southeastern part of the City: 

 
o Southern Oaks is located on the east side of CR 468 east of Continental 

Country Club and, as the crow flies, almost eleven (11) miles from CFW. 
o Wildwood Springs is located on the south side of CR 468 between US 

301 and CR 501 and, as the crow flies, almost nine (9) miles from CFW. 
o Landstone is located on the south side of CR 470 across from the Federal 

Prison and, as the crow flies, almost thirteen (13) miles from CFW. 
 The wells are presently capped and not being utilized. 
 The PDR provided the following Opinions of Probable Cost of the recommended 

infrastructure improvements for Phase 1 (10 tear growth projection): 
 
4.5 MGD Water Treatment Plant $8,238,000 
24” Water Main Champagne Farm to SR 44 $4,206,000 
24” Water Main from Champagne Farm to CR 214 Re-Pump 
Sta. 

$5,814,000 

TOTAL  $18,258,000 

 
 Phase 2, 20 year growth period requires the following: 
     

Additional 1.5 MGD Water Treatment Plant capacity $1,230,000 
SR 44 Eastern Loop (Southern Oaks) $5,868,000 
CR 468/CR 501 Water Main Upgrade $5,382,000 
TOTAL $12,298,000 

 
 As part of the 2014 Water Supply Plan Update, Cardno has identified, due to 

future demands, locations for regional well fields. 
 One of these locations is in north Sumter County west of I-75 to serve the south 

Marion County area. 
 

 CONCLUSIONS: 

 Based on the PDR, the City has sufficient supply, without the Champagne Farm 
wells for the next 10 years. 

 The existing approved future growth in the City is in the far southeast section of 
the City limits.  

 The cost to construct a water treatment plant at Champagne Farm and construct 
the necessary distribution system to serve the future growth area is greater than 
$30,000,000. 

 With the cost to construct the necessary infrastructure to serve the future demand 
area being extreme, it is the opinion of staff and KHA that construction of a 
source closer to the demand would be more prudent. 

 Withlacoochee Regional Water Supply Authority has expressed interest to be a 
major supplier of potable water for the region and utilization of the Champagne 
Farm wells.  

 Marion County Utilities has also expressed interest in being a partner in the 
development of this facility.  

 All three “Parties understand that furtherance of this Project will require 
development of a mutually acceptable Agreement between the Parties that will 

8.a. 
Page 2 of 12



establish, among other obligations, quantities of water to be developed for each 
recipient, Project ownership, operations, timeframe and financial requirements.” 

 The MOU is NOT a financial commitment by any one of the three parties. 
 Although, based on statutory definitions, these wells do not meet the criteria os 

AWS wells, the use of these wells as a regional source is the environmentally 
“GOOD THING” to do. 

 It is the intent of the MOU for the Water Authority to eventually own, operate 
and maintain the project facilities. 
  

LEGAL REVIEW:  

 The MOU has been reviewed by the City Attorney. 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 Staff recommends approval of the MOU between the City of Wildwood, Withlacoochee 
Regional Water Supply Authority and Marion County. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 There are no fiscal impacts resulting from this MOU. 
 

ALTERNATIVES: 

 Maintain the wells for City use only. 
 

SUPPORT MATERIAL: 

 MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING FOR NEW WATER SUPPLY BY AND 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, MARION COUNTY AND THE 
WITHLACOOCHEE REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

 
 
C:\Users\bphillips\Documents\Agenda Items\Feb 24, 2014\MOU Champagne Farm.doc 

8.a. 
Page 3 of 12



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING FOR NEW WATER SUPPLY  

BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, MARION COUNTY AND 

THE WITHLACOOCHEE REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

 
This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is made and entered into by and 

between the City of Wildwood, a municipal corporation of the state of Florida (“City”), 

Marion County, a political subdivision of the state of Florida (“County”), and the 

Withlacoochee Regional Water Supply Authority, an independent special district of the 

State of Florida (“Authority”), collectively the “Parties” for consideration of a regional 

partnership on a water supply Project.  

 
W I T N E S S E T H :  

 
WHEREAS, the Parties recognize the need for adequate, reliable and high-quality 

drinking water supplies to meet local and regional needs; and  

WHEREAS, integrating local and regional supplies provides water system 

reliability and potential cost-savings benefits for both local and regional partners; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to work together to explore opportunities to partner 

on the Project for mutual benefit; and 

WHEREAS, the City has installed two Lower Floridan aquifer wells in the 

northwest portion of the City’s Utility Service Area (the Champagne Farm Wells) and 

desires for these wells to be used as a regional water supply source to be developed by 

the Authority for the future benefit of the City and the County; and 

8.a. 
Page 4 of 12



Page 2 of 9 

WHEREAS, the City has prepared the report entitled Champagne Farm 

Preliminary Design Report, prepared by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., dated 

November 2012; and 

WHEREAS, the City has conducted a pump test of the wells and demonstrated 

the wells are capable of producing approximately 10 million gallons per day (mgd), 

subject to all permitting requirements of government agencies having jurisdiction over 

the project; and 

WHEREAS, the County has expressed an interest in these wells serving as a 

regional water supply source to help meet the County’s future water supply needs; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has expressed an interest in being the responsible Party 

for developing future regional water supply from these wells for the benefit of the City, 

the County and potential other local water supply needs within the Authority’s 

jurisdiction; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties understand that furtherance of this Project will require 

development of a mutually acceptable Agreement between the Parties that will establish, 

among other obligations, quantities of water to be developed for each recipient, Project 

ownership, operations, timeframe and financial requirements; and 

WHEREAS, the execution of this MOU is not a financial commitment on the part 

of any Party to design or develop the Project;  

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, which shall be deemed an 

integral part of this MOU and of the mutual covenants contained herein, the Parties 

intend to pursue the following: 

 

8.a. 
Page 5 of 12



Page 3 of 9 

1. DEVELOPMENT OF THE CHAMPAGNE FARM LOWER FLORIDAN 

AQUIFER WELLS AS A POTABLE WATER SUPPLY SOURCE 

The purpose of this MOU is to outline the intentions of the Parties to have the Authority 

assume responsibility for future water supply development from the Champagne Farm 

lower Floridan aquifer wells.  The City and the County have expressed they do not need 

water supply from the Project at the current time.  The City and the County anticipate that 

the need for water supply from the Project will occur no sooner than approximately ten 

(10) years from the date of this MOU, or the year 2023. However, nothing in this MOU 

prevents the Parties from entering into the Agreement and initiating the Project at an 

earlier or later date, as water supply needs may dictate. The Parties wish to enter into this 

MOU in an effort to plan for the long-term water supply needs of the City and the 

County.  It is the intent of the Parties that as the need for Project water approaches and 

becomes more quantified, the Parties will, in anticipation of these needs, enter into an 

Agreement that further specifies all aspects of the Project, as described in section 3 

below. Until the Parties enter into an agreement, the Champagne Farm Lower Floridan 

aquifer wells will remain the property of the City. Until that time, the City is responsible 

for maintaining the wells, the wellfield property and any associated existing easements in 

a manner that will allow for future development of the Project. 

 

2. PROJECT ATTRIBUTES AND PROVISIONS 

At a minimum the Project will include the infrastructure necessary to produce water from 

the two lower Floridan aquifer wells in quantities specified in the future  by the City and 

the County, not to exceed the estimated well capacities or the amount that can be 

permitted by the Southwest Florida Water Management District (SWFWMD).  The 

8.a. 
Page 6 of 12



Page 4 of 9 

Project may entail delivering raw lower Floridan aquifer groundwater to the City and the 

County, or may include treatment to potable standards and other water quality criteria to 

be specified at the time of entering into a Project Agreement.  The Project may also entail 

the pipeline, pumping and other infrastructure necessary to deliver the Project water to 

the City’s and the County’s utility system points of connection, to be specified at the time 

of entering into the Agreement. 

 

It is the intent of the Parties that the Authority will own, operate and maintain the Project 

facilities.  Ownership of the facilities will transfer from the City to the Authority at the 

time the Parties enter into the Agreement.  It is anticipated payment from the Authority to 

the City for the existing Champagne Farm wells and associated land will be in the form 

of a credit to future water purchases.   It will be the responsibility of the Authority to seek 

all necessary permits for the Project.  The City and the County agree to cooperate with 

the Authority in applying for all necessary permits, including possible modification of the 

City’s Water Use Permit issued by the SWFWMD if, at that time, the City’s permit 

incorporates the Champagne Farm wells. The wells are currently permitted on the City’s 

Water Use Permit for annual average daily withdrawals of 1.64 mgd. For the purpose of 

this MOU, it is assumed the maximum quantity available for the Project will be 

approximately equal to the quantity pumped during the City’s pump test, or 

approximately 10 mgd. The Parties recognize that the total quantity of water available 

from the existing wells cannot be confirmed until an application is submitted to 

SWFWMD for a Water Use Permit.  The City anticipates needing approximately 4.5 mgd 

from the Project in 10 years and 6 mgd in 20 years.  The County anticipates needing 

8.a. 
Page 7 of 12



Page 5 of 9 

approximately 2 mgd in 10 years and 4 mgd in 20 years.  These anticipated quantities are 

subject to change and further refinement as a part of the Project Agreement to be 

developed as outlined in section 3 below. The Authority will also seek grant dollars to 

support the Project, including cooperative funding from the SWFWMD and St. Johns 

River Water Management District (SJRWMD), and state and federal grants.  All grant 

dollars received will apply to the Authority’s cost of developing the Project and are 

intended to reduce the cost of Project water to the City, the County and any other Project 

water recipients. 

 

The parties shall work to ensure that the Project as designed and developed meets the 

following general provisions: 

2.1 Is consistent with the Authority’s Regional Framework and most recent 

Water Supply Master Plan, including: 

2.1.1 Is consistent with the long-term integration of water supplies from 

various sources, including the potential future integration of 

alternative water supplies; 

  2.1.2 Is financially feasible; 

  2.1.3 Provides long-term/permanent regional supply; and 

  2.1.4 Provides an environmental benefit. 

2.2 Is consistent with the SWFWMD’s applicable policies and plans, including: 

2.2.1 Is consistent with the District’s Strategic Plan for the Northern 

Region; 

2.2.2 Supports/provides the development of alternative water supplies; 

8.a. 
Page 8 of 12



Page 6 of 9 

2.2.3 Provides/improves resource management opportunities; and 

2.2.4 Is consistent with the SWFWMD’s and SJRWMD’s Cooperative 

Funding Policies. 

 

3. DEVELOPMENT OF PROJECT AGREEMENT 

The Parties shall develop a Project Agreement that defines each Party’s participation and 

obligations in the Project.  The Agreement shall be submitted for approval to the Parties’ 

respective governing bodies, and shall, at a minimum, include the following: 

3.1 Detailed Project description; 

3.2 Project Location; 

3.3 Identification of expected Project yield and phasing (if applicable); 

3.4 Description of the obligations of each Party during design and 

construction phases; 

3.5 Identification of Parties’ real property ownership in the Project; 

3.6 Identification of Parties’ individual ownership in installed Project 

facilities; 

3.7 Identification of water connection/delivery locations; 

3.8 Identification of each Party’s control of the installed Project facilities; 

3.9 Parties’ participation and responsibilities in obtaining and maintaining 

Environmental Permits and the acquisition of all transmission rights-of-

way needed by the Parties; 

3.10 Identification of each Party’s responsibilities in Project facility operations 

and maintenance; 

8.a. 
Page 9 of 12



Page 7 of 9 

3.11 Identification of cost shares in the Project for each Party including capital 

costs, operational and maintenance costs, administrative costs, and 

methods of contributing each Party’s share of the cost for the Project; 

3.12 Each Party’s anticipated quantity of water from the Project; 

3.13 Minimum finished water quality requirements for delivery; 

3.14 Project schedule; 

3.15 Designated project contacts;  

3.16 Amendments to the Agreement; and 

3.17 Termination of the Agreement. 

 

4. AMENDMENTS 

This MOU may be amended only in writing by the Parties. 

 

5.   TIMEFRAME & TERMINATION 

The MOU may be terminated at any time by any party upon 30 days prior written notice 

to the other Parties.  Unless extended by mutual written consent of the Parties, this MOU 

will terminate automatically on September 30, 2028, or upon the execution of a Project 

Agreement by all respective governing bodies of the Parties, whichever date is earlier. 

 

6. PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 

Execution of this MOU and development of a Project Agreement will not guarantee 

selection of the Project for regional partnership unless and until the Project Agreement is 

approved by the Parties’ governing bodies.   

8.a. 
Page 10 of 12



Page 8 of 9 

7. CONTACTS 

All correspondence and notifications relating to this MOU and/or the Project shall be 

made to the following: 

City of Wildwood 
Bill Ed Cannon, City Manager 
Bruce H. Phillips, PE, PLS, Utility Director 
100 N. Main Street 
Wildwood, FL 34785 
 
Marion County 
Attn:  Lee Niblock, County Administrator 
Attn:  Flip Mellinger, Director of Utilities 
Marion County 
601 SE 25th Avenue 
Ocala, FL 34471-2690 
 
Withlacoochee Regional Water Supply Authority 
Mr. Richard Owen, Executive Director 
3600 W Sovereign Path 
Suite 228 
Lecanto, FL 34461 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this MOU for the purposes 

expressed. 

CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
         

 
 ____________________________________ 

                  Ed Wolf, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
____________________________________ 
Ashley Hunt, City Attorney 
City of Wildwood, Florida 

8.a. 
Page 11 of 12



Page 9 of 9 

      BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 

         
 ____________________________________ 

                  Carl Zalak III, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
David R. Ellspermann, Clerk of the Circuit Court 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 
____________________________________ 
Matthew Minter, County Attorney 
Marion County, Florida 
 
 
      WITHLACOOCHEE REGIONAL  
      WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
 
                                                    
      ____________________________________ 
      James E. Adkins, Chairman       
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Richard S. Owen, Executive Director 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Larry Haag, General Counsel for the 
Withlacoochee Regional Water Supply Authority 
 

8.a. 
Page 12 of 12



 

 

CITY OF WILDWOOD 

 

CITY COMMISSION REPORT Commission Meeting Date:  Feb. 24, 2014 
 

Subject: Landstone Utility Agreement 
 
Submitted By:  Bruce H. Phillips, PE, PLS, Utility Director 
 
Department:  Utility Department 
 
 

Staff Recommendation (Motion Ready): Recommend approval of the “Utilities 
Agreement” between the City of Wildwood, Florida and Landstone-Wright, LLC. 
 
 

BACKGROUND: 

 The City Commission annexed the Wright Ranch, approximately 4,050 acres 
located on the south side of CR 470 on January 22, 2007 by Ordinance No. 503. 

 The City approved the Developer’s Annexation Agreement between the City, 
Tony Mendola, LLC and Landstone Communities, LLC on January 8, 2007. This 
agreement became effective on March 22, 2007. 

 Landstone-Wright, LLC are the successors to Tony Mendola, LLC and Landstone 
Communities, LLC. 

 The City entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with Landstone –Wright, 
LLC on April 4, 2008 (effective date). 

 An Amended and Restated Development Order (ARDO), The Landstone 
Communities Development of Regional Impact, City of Wildwood, between the 
City of Wildwood and Landstone-Wright, LLC was entered into on December 13, 
2010. 
 

FINDING, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

 FINDINGS: 

 The ARDO provided the developer the following: 
o Residential    8,025 Units 
o Commercial/Retail   652,500 SF 
o Office     150,000 SF 
o Warehouse/Industrial   500,000 SF 
o Hotel     250 Rooms 
o Mine     280 Acres 
o Golf Course    18 Holes 
o Parks     80.1 Acres 
o Elementary School   650 Students  

8.b. 
Page 1 of 40



 The Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) provided for the following in 
regards to City utilities: 

o 19 acres for a wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) site. 
o 25 acres for a wet weather storage facility. 
o City to provide potable water, wastewater and reuse water services 

to the development 
o Water Connection fees were to be paid for first 2,000 residential 

units with 50% up front, 25% pro rata at issuance of a building 
permit and 25% pro rata at issuance of a CO. 

o Water TIE fees were to be for 2,000 units and 100% paid upon 
approval of the Development Order (DO). 

o Wastewater Connection fees were to be paid 50% at approval of 
the DO, 25% pro rata at issuance of a building permit and 25% pro 
rata at issuance of a CO. 

o The MOU is silent in regards to wastewater TIE fees, the 
assumption is that the on-site plant and the developer built 
infrastructure negated the need for wastewater TIE fees. 
 

 CONCLUSIONS:   

 Due to the economic down turn the development has not progressed as 
originally planned. 
 
Memorandum of Agreement 

 The up-front fees required of the Developer through the MOU equated to 
approximately $3,900,000 and required the City to fund the capacity 
improvements to the CR 501 water plant, fund the construction of the 
water main to the development and fund the construction of the new 
wastewater treatment plant on the development. 
Proposed Utilities Agreement Between The City of Wildwood, Florida 

and Landstone-Wright, LLC 

 Developer may fund and construct the wastewater treatment facility and 
receive wastewater connection fees for the cost of same. Upon completion 
of the WWTP it would be owned, maintained and operated by the City of 
Wildwood. 

 Developer may also opt to fund the construction of the WWTP and the 
City construct it. 

 Water and wastewater infrastructure shall be constructed by developer and 
turned over to the City for operation and maintenance, therefore no water 
or wastewater TIE fees are applicable. 

 Developer shall fund the design, permitting and construction of any 
capacity improvements required at the CR 501 water plant due to the 
needs of the project and shall receive water connection fee credits for 
same. 

  

LEGAL REVIEW: 

 The former City Attorney was a co-author of this agreement.  

8.b. 
Page 2 of 40



 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 Staff recommends approval of the Utilities Agreement Between the City of 
Wildwood and Landstone-Wright, LLC. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 This agreement is written such that the cost of all capacity improvements and all 
infrastructure improvements are to be borne by the developer. 

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

 Have the City bear the burden of funding all the capacity (treatment plant and 
infrastructure) improvements for the development and collect Connection and TIE 
fees for same. 

 

SUPPORT MATERIAL: 

 Copy of the Utilities Agreement Between The City of Wildwood and Landstone-
Wright, LLC 

 
 
 

 

 

8.b. 
Page 3 of 40



8.b. 
Page 4 of 40



8.b. 
Page 5 of 40



8.b. 
Page 6 of 40



8.b. 
Page 7 of 40



8.b. 
Page 8 of 40



8.b. 
Page 9 of 40



8.b. 
Page 10 of 40



8.b. 
Page 11 of 40



8.b. 
Page 12 of 40



8.b. 
Page 13 of 40



8.b. 
Page 14 of 40



8.b. 
Page 15 of 40



8.b. 
Page 16 of 40



8.b. 
Page 17 of 40



8.b. 
Page 18 of 40



8.b. 
Page 19 of 40



8.b. 
Page 20 of 40



8.b. 
Page 21 of 40



8.b. 
Page 22 of 40



8.b. 
Page 23 of 40



8.b. 
Page 24 of 40



8.b. 
Page 25 of 40



8.b. 
Page 26 of 40



8.b. 
Page 27 of 40



8.b. 
Page 28 of 40



8.b. 
Page 29 of 40



8.b. 
Page 30 of 40



8.b. 
Page 31 of 40



8.b. 
Page 32 of 40



8.b. 
Page 33 of 40



8.b. 
Page 34 of 40



8.b. 
Page 35 of 40



8.b. 
Page 36 of 40



8.b. 
Page 37 of 40



8.b. 
Page 38 of 40



8.b. 
Page 39 of 40



8.b. 
Page 40 of 40



 

 

CITY OF WILDWOOD 

 

CITY COMMISSION REPORT Commission Meeting Date:  Feb. 24, 2014 
 

Subject: Equalization Basin #1, Pump #2 
 
Submitted By:  Bruce H. Phillips, PE, PLS, Utility Director 
 
Department:  Utility Department 
 
 

Staff Recommendation (Motion Ready): Recommend approval of Barney’s Pumps, Inc. 
Quote No. 9922, dated 12-18-13, in the amount of $12,499 to rebuild EQ Basin #1,  
Pump #2.  
 
 

BACKGROUND: 

 EQ Basin #1 was constructed with in 1998. 
 The pump has been experiences issues requiring the staff to manually start the 

motor by hand. 
 The Wastewater Treatment Plant (WTP) has two equalization basins.  
 The basins are connected together with an equalization pipe.  
 There are 3-pumps located in EQ Basin #1. 
 The EQ Basins “take the peak flow” out of the system. 
  The number of pumps operating at any one time depends on the volume of water 

in the EQ Basins. 
 

FINDING, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

 FINDINGS: 

 On Tuesday, Feb. 11, 2014, in the early afternoon, the mechanical seal on 
the pump failed placing the pump out of service. 

 The proper operation of the WTP is dependent on 3 EQ pumps and is 
required by the City’s Operating Permit.   

 
 CONCLUSIONS: 

 The pump must be repaired or replaced for the plant to operate properly. 
 Barney’s Pumps, Inc. is the only current authorized distributor for Aurora 

pumps. (see attached letter) 
  

LEGAL REVIEW: N/A 
 

 

8.c. 
Page 1 of 4



RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 Staff recommends approval to rebuild the pump at a cost of $12,499. 
 Staff has confirmed that quote no. 9922, dated Dec. 12, 2013 is still a valid quote. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 This is not a budgeted item, funding would be from account no. 401-0036-
536.0460, Repair and Maintenance with an unencumbered balance of 
$377,415.58 as of January 31, 2014. 

 Since this is a non-budgeted item, there may be a need before the end of fiscal 
year 13/14 to amend the budget for budgeted repair and maintenance items. 

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

 None that staff is aware of, the repair and/or replacement of this pump is required 
to remain in compliance with the City’s Operating Permit. 

 

SUPPORT MATERIAL: 

 Barney’s Pumps, Inc. quote no. 9922, dated Dec. 18, 2014. 
 Sole source for Barney’s Pumps, Inc. from Pentair Flow Technologies, dated Jan. 

8, 2013. 
 
C:\Users\bphillips\Documents\Agenda Items\Feb 24, 2014\EQ Basin 2 Pump rebuild memo.doc 
 

 

 

 

 

8.c. 
Page 2 of 4



8.c. 
Page 3 of 4



8.c. 
Page 4 of 4



CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

SUBJECT: SP 1307-02 Oxford Oaks – Improvement Plan (PLAT) Phase 1 Revision 

REQUESTED ACTION: 
Approval of the revision to the Improvement Plan (SP 1307-02)

 Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: 2/24/2014 
 Regular Meeting  Special Meeting

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
Managing Division / Dept:

BUDGET IMPACT:

 Annual FUNDING SOURCE: 
 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 

The applicant seeks a revision to the approved Improvement Plan, adding twenty-one (21) single-
family homes to the original 247 units for a total of 268 units in Phase 1 (total of 563 residential units), 
with related improvements.  Staff recommends approval of the revision to the Oxford Oaks 
Improvement Plan (case SP 1307-02). 

Case SP 1307-02 was considered by the Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate on Thursday, 
February 6th, 2014.  The Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate gave a favorable 
recommendation of the Improvement Plan to the City Commission. 

Melanie D. Peavy 
Development Services Director 

9.a. 
Page 1 of 5



9.a. 
Page 2 of 5



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

JUNE 2013 LOCATION MAP

OXFORD OAKS
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 190 380

Feet

I:\
Te

rr
i\G

IS
\M

a
p

s\
L

oc
a

tio
n

\L
o

ca
tio

n
 -

 O
xf

o
rd

 O
a

ks
.m

xd
 -

 6
/2

4
/2

0
13

 1
:4

5
:3

9
 P

M
 -

 t
o

n
e

al

C
R

 2
09

CR 222

C-466 E

CR 214

CR 216

N
 U

S
 3

0
1

C
R

 2
01

N
E

 2
7t

h 
S

T

C-472

CR 106

CR 108

CR 114

CR 110

C
R

 2
07

C
R

 2
07

 W

Legend

Oxford Oaks

City of Wildwood Re-Pump Station

City of Wildwood

Parcels

9.a. 
Page 3 of 5



9.a. 
Page 4 of 5



9.a. 
Page 5 of 5



CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

SUBJECT: Oxford Oaks – First Amendment to Developer’s Agreement 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

 
Approval of the First Amendment to the Oxford Oaks 
Developer’s Agreement (Staff Recommends Approval). 

 
  Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: 2/24/14 
  Regular Meeting  Special Meeting  
  

 
  

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
 Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
 Managing Division / Dept:   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
 

 Annual 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
 

 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A  

 

 
 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 
  
The Developer, Mid Florida Properties LLC, recently requested approval to add twenty-one single 
family lots to Phase 1 of the Oxford Oaks Development for a total of 268 residential units in Phase 1 
and 563 total units in the development.   
 
This first amendment to the Oxford Oaks Developer’s Agreement adds 21 ERUs for a total of 268 
ERUs in Phase 1 of the development.  It is expected that the applicant/developer will amend their 
agreement again later in 2014 to reserve the final 295 ERUs for Phase 2 of the development. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the attached Developer’s Agreement for Oxford Oaks. 
 

 
Melanie D. Peavy 
Development Services Director 
 

9.b. 
Page 1 of 9



 

 
1

This instrument prepared by and         
after recording return to: 
 
Jerri A. Blair 
JERRI A. BLAIR, P.A. 
P.O. 130 
Tavares, FL  32778 
(352) 343-3755 

 
FIRST ADDENDUM TO DEVELOPER’S AGREEMENT  

BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA AND 

MID-FLORIDA PROPERTIES, LLC 
 

 This agreement, effective this _______ day of __________, 201_, made and 

entered into by and between the City of Wildwood, Florida, a Florida municipal 

corporation (hereinafter called "City"), and Mid-Florida Properties, LLC, a Florida limted 

liability company (hereinafter called “Developer”), is an addendum to that certain 

developers agreement between the City of Wildwood and Mid-Florida Properties, LLC, 

dated October 14, 2013 (hereinafter “the developer’s agreement”), and which applies to 

development of the property owned by Developer identified in Exhibit “A” attached 

thereto.  The parties agree as follows:  

 W I T N E S S E T H: 

1. The original developer’s agreement is hereby amended as follows: 

a. The developer originally purchased 247 ERC’s of water capacity 

and wastewater capacity based upon water and wastewater 

connection fee charges in effect at the time of purchase and is 

revising the attached Exhibits B and C of the original developer’s 

agreement to increase the ERC’s to 268. 

b. The City has determined at the time of execution of this addendum 

that the Developer may purchase an additional 21 water ERCs and 

21 wastewater ERCs so that Developer will have a total of 268 

water ERCs and 268 wastewater ERCs made available at the times 

listed in the revised Exhibit D attached. 

9.b. 
Page 2 of 9



 

 
2

c. Amounts due after the recalculation are payable at the execution of 

this agreement. 

 2. All other provisions of the developer’s agreement remain in full force and 

effect. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused these presents to be 

executed on the day and year indicated below: 

Signed, sealed and delivered 
in the presence of: 

CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 
 

BY:_______________________________ 
ATTEST:      Mayor Ed Wolf 
 
____________________________ 
Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
State of _______________ 
County of ______________ 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ______ day of 
____________________, 201_, by Ed Wolf, Mayor of the City of Wildwood, who has 
produced __________________________as identification or is personally known to 
me. 
 

_______________________________ 
Notary Public, State of Florida 

 

9.b. 
Page 3 of 9



 

 
3

 
Mid-Florida Properties, LLC 

 
 
 

___________________________________ 
BY:  
 
 

WITNESS      
__________________________  DATE:______________________________ 

 
 
State of _______________ 
County of ______________ 
 

 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ______ day of 
____________________, 201_, by __________________________, of Mid-Florida 
Properties, LLC, who has produced __________________________as identification or 
is personally known to me. 
 

_______________________________ 
Notary Public, State of _____________ 

 
Commission # 
My Commission Expires: 

 

9.b. 
Page 4 of 9



 City of Wildwood 
100 N. Main Street 

Wildwood, FL 34785 – 352-330-1330 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

EXHIBIT __A___ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION –  
 
A PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER 
COUNTY FLORIDA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SAID SECTION 18; 
THENCE N00°26'23"E ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4 A DISTANCE OF 1323.97 
FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 
18; THENCE S89°23'32"E ALONG SAID NORTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET TO THE POINT 
OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUE S89°23'32"E, ALONG SAID NORTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 
1273.53 FEET TO THE WEST LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID 
SECTION 18; THENCE N00°26'06"E ALONG SAID WEST LINE A DISTANCE OF 1323.63 FEET TO 
THE NORTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE S89°22'39"E 
ALONG SAID NORTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 1114.72 FEET TO A POINT 208.71 FEET WEST OF THE 
EAST LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE PARALLEL WITH SAID EAST 
LINE RUN S00°25'50"W A DISTANCE OF 208.71 FEET; THENCE PARALLEL WITH SAID NORTH 
LINE RUN S89°22'39"E A DISTANCE OF 208.71 FEET TO A POINT ON SAID EAST LINE; THENCE 
N00°25'50"E, ALONG SAID EAST LINE A DISTANCE OF 28.71 FEET TO A POINT 180.00 FEET 
SOUTH OF THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 18; THENCE PARALLEL 
WITH SAID NORTH LINE RUN S89°22'39"E A DISTANCE OF 2529.92 FEET TO THE WEST RIGHT 
OF WAY OF STATE ROAD NO. 35 (U.S. 301); THENCE S00°57'08"E ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY A 
DISTANCE OF 574.88 FEET; THENCE DEPARTING SAID RIGHT OF WAY S87°03'31"W A DISTANCE 
OF 89.10 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF THE LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL 
RECORDS BOOK 1628 PAGE 483, PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE 
N89°22'32"W ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 151.16 FEET TO THE WEST LINES OF 
THE LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 1628 PAGE 481 AND OFFICIAL RECORDS 
BOOK 1628, PAGE 483; THENCE S00°36'51"W ALONG SAID WEST LINES A DISTANCE OF 204.69 
FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 155, PAGE 
73, PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE N89°20'28"W ALONG SAID 
NORTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 16.14 FEET TO THE WEST LINE THEREOF; THENCE S00°57'08"E 
ALONG SAID WEST LINE A DISTANCE OF 360.00 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF THE 
NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 18; THENCE N89°20'28"W ALONG 
SAID SOUTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 967.51 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF 
THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 18; THENCE S00°25'03"W ALONG SAID EAST LINE A 
DISTANCE OF 1296.13 FEET TO A POINT 28.00 FEET NORTH OF THE SOUTH LINE OF THE 
SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 18; THENCE PARALLEL WITH SAID 
SOUTH LINE RUN N89°18'18"W A DISTANCE OF 1328.34 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF 
THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 18; SAID POINT ALSO BEING 
28.00 FEET NORTH OF THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4; 
THENCE PARALLEL WITH SAID SOUTH LINE RUN N89°24'24"W A DISTANCE OF 1323.63 FEET TO 
A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF AFORESAID SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4; POINT 
ALSO BEING 28.00 FEET NORTH OF THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE 
SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE PARALLEL WITH SAID SOUTH LINE RUN N89°24'24"W A DISTANCE OF 
317.83 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EASTERLY BOUNDARY OF THOSE LANDS DESCRIBED IN 
OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 1884, PAGE 366, PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA; 
THENCE ALONG THE BOUNDARY OF SAID LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 
1884, PAGE 366 THE FOLLOWING THREE (3) COURSES: THENCE RUN N00°38'26"E A DISTANCE 
OF 199.08 FEET; THENCE N89°21'34"W A DISTANCE OF 208.72; THENCE S00°38'26"W A 
DISTANCE OF 199.25 FEET TO A POINT 28.00 FEET NORTH OF SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE  

9.b. 
Page 5 of 9



 City of Wildwood 
100 N. Main Street 

Wildwood, FL 34785 – 352-330-1330 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

EXHIBIT __A___ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE PARALLEL WITH SAID SOUTH LINE RUN 
N89°24'24"W A DISTANCE OF 747.09 FEET TO A POINT 50.00 FEET EAST OF THE WEST LINE OF 
THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 18; THENCE PARALLEL WITH 
SAID WEST LINE RUN N00°26'23"E A DISTANCE OF 1295.96 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

9.b. 
Page 6 of 9



 City of Wildwood 
100 N. Main Street 

Wildwood, FL 34785 – 352-330-1330 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

EXHIBIT __B___ 

Development Authority:_____________________ ________________________ _________ 
                                               Printed Name                      Signature                             Date 
 
Agreement to Provide:______________________ ________________________ _________ 
        Bill Ed Cannon  (City Manager)         Signature                Date 
 
This commitment expires after _____days without the execution of a Developer’s Agreement 

 
 
 
 

DEVELOPER UTILITY CONCURRENCY 
TIE CHARGES DUE 

 
PROJECT NAME:__Oxford Oaks    ___________________________________ 
 
 
1) WATER: 
 

a) One (1) water TIE due for every water connection ERU reserved 

b) Number of water ERU’s reserved =      # 268 

c) Number of water TIE’s due =       # 268 

d) Charge per water TIE for this project =     $        725.32 

e) TOTAL water TIE charges due 

$725.32  x # 268  =       $ 194,385.76 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
2) WASTEWATER: 
 

a) One (1) wastewater TIE due for every wastewater connection ERU reserved 

b) Number of wastewater ERU’s reserved =     # 268 

c) Number of wastewater TIE’s due =      # 268 

d) Charge per wastewater TIE for this project =     $     1,136.52 

e) TOTAL water TIE charges due 

$ 1,136.52 x # 268  =       $ 304,587.36 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

3) NOTE: 

ALL water and wastewater TIE fees are due at the execution of the Developer’s Agreement 

 
 
 
 

9.b. 
Page 7 of 9



 

 

City of Wildwood 
100 N. Main Street 

Wildwood, FL 34785 – 352-330-1330 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

EXHIBIT __C___ 

Development Authority:_____________________ ________________________ _________ 
                                               Printed Name                      Signature                             Date 
 
Agreement to Provide:______________________ ________________________ _________ 
        Bill Ed Cannon (City Manager)         Signature                Date 
 
This commitment expires after _____days without the execution of a Developer’s Agreement 

 
 
 
 

DEVELOPER UTILITY CONCURRENCY 
CONNECTION FEES: 

 
PROJECT NAME:__Oxford Oaks     _______________________________ 
 
WATER CONNECTION FEE:         Check One 
    

a) Inside City, or, Pre-Annexation   $     1,103.62 
    

or b) Outside City, NO Pre-Annexation    
 

One (1) water ERU = 300 gallons per day 
 
Number of water connections (ERU’s) requested # 268 
 
TOTAL water connection fee charges = $1,103.62 x  # 268 =   $  295,770.16 

 
DUE SCHEDULE: 
 
 50% due on execution of developer’s agreement    $  147,885.08 

  
25% due on issuance of each construction permit   $    73,942.54 

 25% due issuance of Certificate of Occupancy    $    73,942.54 
 

   TOTAL $  295,770.16   
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
WASTEWATER CONNECTION FEE:        Check One 
    

a) Inside City, or, Pre-Annexation  $      2,342.32 
    

or b) Outside City, NO Pre-Annexation   
 

One (1) wastewater ERU = 250 gallons per day 
 
Number of wastewater connections (ERU’s) requested # 268 
 
TOTAL wastewater connection fee charges = $ 2,342.32 x # 268 =  $  627,741.76 

 
DUE SCHEDULE: 
 
 50% due on execution of developer’s agreement    $  313,870.88 
 
 25% due on issuance of each construction permit   $  156,935.44 
 
 25% due on issuance of Certificate of Occupancy   $  156,935.44 
  
         TOTAL $  627,741.76    
 
 
 
 

9.b. 
Page 8 of 9



                 City of Wildwood 
                                          100 N. Main Street 

                                         Wildwood, FL 34785 – 352-330-1330 

Exhibit  _D_  
 

DEVELOPER UTILITY CONCURRENCY 
REQUESTED UTILITY CONNECTION AVAILABILITY SCHEDULE 

1.3 MGD EXPANSION WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 
 

PROJECT NAME:    Oxford Oaks 
 

YEAR 2012  
1st Qtr. ‘12 

ERU’s Needed  
2nd Qtr. ‘12 

ERU’s Needed  
3rd Qtr. ‘12 

ERU’s Needed 
 4th Qtr. ‘12 

ERU’s Needed 

 WATER      

 

   

 

   

 

   

 WASTEWATER             

 REUSE                
 

YEAR 2013  
1st Qtr. ‘13 

ERU’s Needed 

 

2nd Qtr. ‘13 
ERU’s Needed 

 

3rd Qtr. ‘13 
ERU’s Needed 

 4th Qtr. ‘13 
ERU’s Needed 

 WATER             268  

 WASTEWATER           268  

 REUSE                
 

YEAR 2014  
1st Qtr. ‘14 

ERU’s Needed 

 

2nd Qtr. ‘14 
ERU’s Needed 

 

3rd Qtr. ‘14 
ERU’s Needed 

 4th Qtr. ‘14 
ERU’s Needed 

 WATER      (295) – Not Reserved       

 WASTEWATER    (295) – Not Reserved       

 REUSE                
 

YEAR 2015  
1st Qtr. ‘15 

ERU’s Needed 

 

2nd Qtr. ‘15 
ERU’s Needed 

 

3rd Qtr. ‘15 
ERU’s Needed 

 4th Qtr. ‘15 
ERU’s Needed 

 WATER               

 WASTEWATER             

 REUSE                
 

YEAR 2016  
1st Qtr. ‘16 

ERU’s Needed 

 

2nd Qtr. ‘16 
ERU’s Needed 

 

3rd Qtr. ‘16 
ERU’s Needed 

 4th Qtr. ‘16 
ERU’s Needed 

 WATER               

 WASTEWATER             

 REUSE                
 

Development Authority:      
 Printed Name  Signature  Date 

Authorized City 
Representative:      

 Printed Name    Signature  Date 

This commitment expires after   days without the execution of a Developer’s Agreement 

ALL SEPARATE COMMERCIAL UNITS REQUIRE A MINIMUM OF ONE (1) FULL ERC  
G:\OFFICE\WPWIN\DORIS\Forms - TIE - Connection, etc\ERUs Needed 2ND QTR 2007-4TH QTR 2011(Requested Utility Connection Availability Schedule).doc 
 

9.b. 
Page 9 of 9



SUBJEC
 
 
REQUES

 
 
 
 

CONTRA
 
 
 
 
BUDGET
 

 Annua
 Capita
 N/A 

    
 

HISTORY
Currently
Sales Ev
Non-Prof
Developm
 
The Com
(RV/Auto
business
Commiss
within the
commiss
permitted
 
Further, 
separate
Recreatio
consolida
and requ
 
Therefore
that wou
events. 

Melanie 
Developm
 

CITY

CT: Dis

STED ACTIO

 W
 

 
 

ACT:  
Effe
Man

T IMPACT: 

al 
al 

                          

Y/FACTS/IS
y, the City o
vents (Christ
fit Events (
ment Regula

mmission ha
o Tent Sales
ses within th
sion has als
e City limits

sion’s intent 
d in future – 

many appro
e approval 
on Coordina
ate all event

uire those req

e, staff is se
uld remove 

D. Peavy 
ment Service

Y COMMIS

scussion It

ON: 

Work Sessio
Regular Mee

N/A 
ective Date: 
naging Divis

 
 
FUNDING S
EXPENDITU
 
                          

SSUES: 
f Wildwood 
tmas Trees,
(Bake sales
ations (LDRs

as expresse
s) within the 
he City of W
o expressed
, and not ne

regarding 
for auto sale

oved events
is required 

ator, it was f
t requests, w
quests go th

eeking Comm
section 3.1

es Director 

SSION OF

EXECUT

tem – Spec
 
Commissio
Events / Se

on (Report O
eting 

__________
sion / Dept: 

SOURCE: 
URE ACCO

                          

regulates T
, Fireworks)
s, car was
s). 

ed their des
City limits, a

Wildwood, th
d a desire to
ecessarily on
what types 
es as well as

 take place 
to secure 

felt that it co
whether or n
hrough the P

mission app
1 from the 

 

F THE CI
 

TIVE SUMM
 

cial Events

on direction
easonal Ev

Only) DAT
 S

 

Vend
____ Term

 

UNT: 

                 

emporary S
, Community
hes) under 

sire to elimi
as it is felt to
herefore ma

o allow auto 
n their own p

of sales a
s other types

on City fac
those facil

ould be more
not they use

Parks and Re

roval to draf
LDRs and 

ITY OF W

MARY 

s / Seasona

n regarding 
vents / Tent

TE OF MEET
Special Meet

dor/Entity:  
mination Date

 
 
 

ales Events
y Events (C

section 3.

nate certain
o take away 
aking such 
dealers with
property.  T
re to be re
s of seasona

cilities, such 
ities.  After

e productive
e City faciliti
ecreation De

ft an Ordina
clarify the 

WILDWOO

al Sales / T

requireme
t Sales and

TING: F
ting  

 

 
e:   

s (RV / Auto
Carnivals, Co
.11 Special

n types of e
sales oppor
sales unde

hin the City 
herefore, sta

estricted, an
al sales, com

as the Com
r discussion

e and less co
es, under th

epartment in

nce for the C
Commission

OD 

Tent Sales

nts for Spe
 other simil

February 24

 Tent Sales
oncerts, Circ
l Events of

events in th
rtunity from 
sirable.  Ho
limits to hold
aff wishes to

nd which ty
mmunity eve

mmunity Ce
n with the 
onfusing to r
he Code of 
n future. 

Commission
n’s intent on

cial 
lar items. 

4, 2014 

), Seasonal 
cuses), and 
f the Land 

heir entirety 
established 

owever, the 
d tent sales 
o clarify the 
pes will be 

ents, etc. 

nter, where 
Parks and 

residents to 
Ordinances 

n’s approval 
n permitted 

9.c. 
Page 1 of 1


	8.a. Champagne Farm Wells.pdf
	MOU Champagne Farm.1
	Wildwood_Marion_WRWSA MOU 01-18-14-1

	8.b. Landstone Utility Agreement.pdf
	Landstone Utility Agreement Agenda memo
	Landstone Final 2-10-14

	8.c. EQ Basin 2 Pump Rebuild.pdf
	EQ Basin 2 Pump rebuild memo
	Barney's Pumps quote 9922




